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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
B

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A S 55 B 2

RESULTS
¥4
Year ended 31 March

BE=ZH=1—HILFEE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
ZE B | ZEFAE ZEFZNE ZFTLE ZFEAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
TURNOVER BEM
Contract revenue FHBRA 2,038,850 | 2,140,998 2,064,944 1,510,651 1,262,663
Property gross rental income LIEYE N L 15,943 11,687 13,314 18,545 12,152
2,054,793 2,152,685 2,078,258 1,529,196 1,274,815

Contract costs A HI AR (1,901,867)| (2,024,350)  (1,940,307)  (1,447,906)  (1,203,545)
Property expenses LES 53 (894) (1,561) (1,283) (1,441) (1,118)
Gross profit EA 152,032 126,774 136,668 79,849 70,152
Other income and gains J At W A T Wi 129,601 16,387 40,609 36,322 65,278
Administrative and other expenses AT R 3 B 3 (45,911) (213,655) (50,611) (42,613) (55,669)
Finance costs MHEH (7,319) (18,808) (33,160) (30,504) (20,903)
Share of profits and losses of A e I e o] 28

jointly-controlled entities i A % s 4 152 106 - - -
Income tax (expense)/credit BIE () Wess (36,386) 9,947 (17,408) (5,914) (17,041)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) #A, OB ) S 192,169 (79,249) 76,098 37,140 41,817
FINANCIAL POSITION
85K B
At 31 March
W=EH=4+—H

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
SRR | ZEFUE ZEFNE ZEFLE ZFEAE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#T T T#r T

[nvestment properties " 692,226 471,892 613,104 412,810 518,790
Property, plant and equipment LIERS Ty &1 150,330 17,136 17,965 12,204 20,504
Properties held for development RHEEERZME - 127,000 115,500 115,586 115,500
Interests in jointly-controlled entities 7 3t [a] £ ] £ % 9 E 23 258 106 - - -
Prepaid land lease and A LA R

other non-current assets Hofb ki B G 108,955 111,970 114,985 9,709 670
Current assets M &R 670,784 681,197 703,175 650,869 371,320
Current liabilities L IRER iR (582,884) (598,660) (532,467) (622,974) (370,257)
Non-current liabilities EI T R=L (429,405) (392,576) (537,745) (269,627) (385,275)
Net assets &R F 610,264 418,065 494,517 308,577 271,252
Issued capital T AT A 37,187 37,182 37,132 23,519 23,519
Reserves ik 573,077 380,883 457,385 285,058 247,733
Total equity HARE S 610,264 418,065 494,517 308,577 271,252
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS I 5 B

e Turnover at HK$2,055 million, down 4.5% from =« #ZE# 520550 > 524 FH21.530F
HK$2,153 million for the previous year W0 T Bk4.5%

e Turnaround to a net profit of HK$192 million from a net o g5 & « A FEE 1928 W0 » e
loss of HK$79 million for the previous year Il % s 18 9 47,9005 ¥ o

e Basic earnings per share at HK12.9 cents, as compared to o fFBIEARZ R 12,984l > i Z24F B QI R B9
loss per share of HK5.3 cents for the previous year T 185 3 W Al
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
#"om o K A R A #

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EV 28

Turnover (HK$ million)
BEM (AHEL)

2005/06  2006/07 2007/08  2008/09 2009/10

PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, all industries have experienced
the most challenging upheaval in the wake of the global
financial turmoil in late 2008. Driven by a series of monetary
and fiscal stimulus measures by the HKSAR Government and
a huge flow of “hot money”, Hong Kong’s economic activities,
especially the property markets, have shown a dramatic
recovery.

For the year under review, the Group has posted a net profit
attributable to shareholders of HK$192,169,000, as compared
to a net loss of HK$79,249,000 for the previous year. Our
contract works segment has continued to achieve a steady
growth and sound performance. With the rebound of the
values of Hong Kong’s properties, our properties segment has
made a strong turnaround.

Basic earnings per share was HK12.9 cents for the year under
review, as compared to loss per share of HK5.3 cents for the
previous year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final

dividend (2009: nil).

Profit (loss) (HK$ million)
#BA OB#) (FEBT)

2005/06  2006/07 2007/08  2008/09 2009/10

XHRB

R PE20084: R B A 2 R BRI 5 fE AR - 7 B LA
W IR AT R REIE T — Ui L P o B 3 o
A8 T U A (AL IBOART — T o) A O B B B K
B I MAZHEHT > FWZEIED > U
TS > B B R

T Te] AR PS> A 4R T B 45 T SR HE Al ik A i 98
192,169,000 € » 2 47 Rl % f5 45 3§ #179,249,000
WG o AR Z TS A A B AS P AR R K
RRAE SRR - BEE B WY R Z R AR
W 3 43 T 2 S A A K W J3E A s L o

T 1] LA BN > B TR RE A TR B 12,984l 5 T 2%
A J) 2 B I s AR5 39 Al o

ERGARHEIRE AL (ZFFIE ) o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EN 83

BUSINESS REVIEW

Contract Works — Construction, Maintenance and
Engineering Works

Our contract works segment has made improvement in the
gross profit margin, which increased to 6.7% for the year under
review from 5.4% for the previous year. This is attributable
to management’s successful effort in controlling costs against
the strong pressure from a general inflation trend. Turnover
from our various construction, maintenance and engineering
contract works decreased by 4.8% to HK$2,039 million for
the year under review from HK$2,141 million for the previous
year.

During the year under review, we completed a number of
contracts including the Replacement and Rehabilitation
of Water Mains Stage 1 Phase 2 on Hong Kong Island, the
Term Contract for Design and Construction of Minor Works
to Government and Subvented Properties for Which the
Architectural Services Department (“ASD”) is Responsible at
Hong Kong, Kowloon, New Territories and Outlying Islands,
the Construction of Ngau Chi Wan Recreation Ground
at Wong Tai Sin, the Construction of a Primary School at
Development near Choi Wan Road and Jordan Valley, Kwun
Tong and the Fitting-Out Works for Podium of the Proposed
Residential Development (Package One) at TKOTL No. 70,
Area 86, Site F, Tseung Kwan O, etc.

On the other hand, with our construction, maintenance and
engineering works continuing to receive high credit from our
clients, particularly from the public sector, we secured a total
of HK$2,255 million of contracts on various projects from
ASD and others during the year under review.

In pursuit of expanding our scope of works, we have joint
force with another major contractor in Hong Kong through
the establishment of Leighton-Able Joint Venture, in which
we have a 49% interest. In January 2010, Leighton-Able Joint
Venture successfully obtained the contract for the design
and construction of North Lantau Hospital, Phase 1, with a
contract sum of HK$1,700 million.

Property Investment and Development
Our investment properties were valued at an aggregate value

of HK$692,226,000 as of 31 March 2010 by independent

professional valuers.

As a result of the annual valuation, we posted an aggregate
gain of approximately HK$117,798,000 on changes in fair
value of investment properties.

VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

# Ok A B & 7

%05 ol
TR-% RERTHEEH

ARSEE Z TR Z BRGNS > HEFEZ
5.4% I TI [0 B4R B =2.6.7% » Ja BEAE 2 4 B g AF
Fimm B R Z MR T » 5RESS s 5 i A
ZRR o A EE 2 B TR G (4 0 A% TE AR
Pl X TR A #)) Z 8 38 H 2 4-22,141,000,000
T A 4.8%%2,039,000,000 7T o

TP B AE BE Y 5 ACAR M SR % T AR - JL b i
B B A KA S B SR 1RE BRI — B R KA
TR - B R BT ~ JUHE BT R s
5B BT Z O B Bl A S /N M A8 TR R A 1Y
A~ BB R AN A 8 AR R I e - AR B 1
AR EIE W 2 B e IH B /NER DL RHT S
TRLFHb [ 575 8.6 [ % B 0 Ti7 b B SR 709% i @ ok 1 8
BRIEH CRIRB) 2T AR5 TR -

BEAD » H A A ) 2 A AR S TR 40 4 A
WRR P Z W > LA S A R
AT FEE VN > A S T o o 8 et 5 e B % 5 A
#44H2,255,000,000% 6 Z & JHT A 4 o

LN U QI RN CE S K TS
W s ACHR B — R G A (R — R
PRI D) o Jo o AR A 49% HE 2 - R T —F
A RO R R U R M L
KL BB ZHH > BT -

YR LR

N oFZ—BE=ZA=Z21—H  REFHZREY
26 B0 S LSRN B B REAY > AR %692,226,0009%
ﬁ o

ARG AR > REE SRR EWEATVHE
i 58 B 2 W2k A 36 £0117,798,00045 ¢ ©
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EN 83

In December 2009, we obtained the government approval for
the modification of the land lease of Nos. 92A-C, Pokfulam
Road, Hong Kong pursuant to our redevelopment plan. We
have determined to demolish the original block of 12-unit
building at Nos. 92A-C, Pokfulam Road and redevelop the
premises into luxury residence. In around June 2009, the old
building was demolished. Site preparation work is in hand. It
is expected the redevelopment will complete in 2012.

The redevelopment work of the premises at Nos. 123-127
Tung Choi Street, Mongkok, Kowloon into a hotel has been
progressing as scheduled. The old building was demolished and
piling work is in progress. It is expected to be completed in
2012.

The development of a two-storey luxury residential house,
with a self-contained garden and a swimming pool, in Tai Po
was completed and the occupation permit (commonly known
as OP) was issued by the Building Authority of Hong Kong on
31 December 2009.

PROSPECT

In the first quarter of 2010, Hong Kong’s GDP growth has
surged to 8.2%, reflecting signs of a cross-industry recovery.
However, the recent European financial crisis has cast
significant uncertainty over the global economy. Against
this backdrop, we view the economic outlook with cautious
optimism and will maintain our prudent approach in project
management and cost control. In the meantime, to sustain the
Group’s profitability, management will continue to explore
opportunities for expansion or diversification of the Group’s
businesses to the Mainland China.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Directors, I would like to extend our
gratitude and sincere appreciation to all management and staff
members of the Group for their hard work and dedication and
all the shareholders of the Company for their support.

On behalf of the Board

Ngai Chun Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2010
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES &
SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
#"om o K A R A #

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Yo SRR

Percentage held

Address Use Tenure by the Group
A AR A
sk Jjif: A [ip: g1

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AT 31 MARCH 2010
AEMR_F-FEZJ] T ARAZWE

I.  Properties in Hong Kong

REEZME

1. Shop Nos. G29A2, G28, G65, G64A and G64B, G27A Shops Long term 100%
and G27B, G26A and G26B on Ground Floor of [iikKii lease
Portion B, Argyle Centre, Phase 1, No. 688 Nathan Road, EE A

No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon

JUHE IE £4 5 B 68898 » i B B #6559 »

HE A4 v — BB L FG29A2 ~ G28 ~ G65 ~
G64A ~ G64B ~ G27A ~ G27B ~ G26A K G26B5E il

2. Shop Nos. 5 and 6 and Storeroom 3, Shops Medium term 100%
1st Floor, Fou Wah Centre, No. 210 Castle Peak Road, ki lease
Tsuen Wan, New Territories o 491 L 4
R L E21098 E # b b
1A8ES e 6.55% fili e 3 5% My ) =2
3. No. 155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon Office Medium term 100%
JURE JURE I %5 4T & 2 1559% WA lease
w0 L4
4. No. 157 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon Office Medium term 100%
JUREJURE I 54T 2 & 1579% b /A lease
o 35 AH 40
5. Garden Suite No. 37B of House 37 and Car Parking Residential Medium term 100%
Space No. 78 on Platform A of Forest Hill, i lease
No. 31 Lo Fai Road, Tai Po, New Territories o B FH 40

TS O Il 0 R B 3 1 5% A 1L 3 7
3THEBAE £ 57 K AT £ 78%% IH B Ar
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o VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Py 2

Percentage held

Address Use Tenure by the Group
AAR A
o s Jjif: £ [ipi g1

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AT 31 MARCH 2010 (continued)
AREFR -F-FEZH =T+ HBHHAEZ2WE (B

1.  Properties in Hong Kong (continued)

HE 2 E ()

6. Flat E, 17th Floor, Tower 2, The Greenwood (Phase 1), Residential Medium term 100%
Laguna Verde, No. 8 Laguna Verde Avenue, Hung Hom, JEstct lease
Kowloon o HA AL A
JUHE AT Bl ¥ 3% G S 9% Vi 3 55 1R
KR (SE139]) SE2 PR 1 THEE S

7. Car Parking Space Nos. 54 and 56 on Ground Floor, Car park Medium term 100%
Oxford Court, Nos. 24-26 Braemar Hill Road, A HAL lease
North Point, Hong Kong w0 L4
Tt /A B IS (L 24-265% MK b R 5458
B2 565% 1 B AL

8. Unit B including carport(s) and garden, Riverain Bayside, Residential Medium term 100%
No. 3985 Tai Po Road Yuen Chau Tsai, £ lease
Tai Po, New Territories v HHFH 40
T Rl 2 B 50 P A BE3.9.85 5% ¥4 JE B L AL
HUHL A K At

9. No. 3987 Tai Po Road Yuen Chau Tsai, Residential Medium term 100%
Tai Po, New Territories B lease
BT R K Ml o B T N A B398 75% AL A

10. No. 9 Belfran Road, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon Residential Long term 100%
JuiE ] SC H ELZF 3B OHE £ lease

ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010 £E#H&
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o VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Py 2

Percentage held

Address Use Tenure by the Group
AAR A
o s Jjif: £ [ipi g1

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AT 31 MARCH 2010 (continued)
AREFR -F-FEZH =T+ HBHHAEZ2WE (B

II. Property in the People’s Republic of China

UE YN ] PR S
1. Block M-K39, Sunshine Holiday Villas, Residential N/A* 100%
Yingchengzi Village, Badaling Town, Yangqing Country, 1EE A8
Beijing, People’s Republic of China
e N R G A [ b ot A B R

J\E AR B I T A 0 6B H T BEMK 39

* The real estate title certificate has yet to be obtained.

o UNA RIS R
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o VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Py 2

Percentage held

Address Use Tenure by the Group
AAR A
o s Jjif: £ [ipi g1

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AT 31 MARCH 2010 (continued)
AREFR -F-FEZH =T+ HBHHAEZ2WE (B

III. Properties under development in Hong Kong

REFEZER DY R
1. Nos. 123, 125, 127 Tung Choi Street, Hotel Long term 100%
Mongkok, Kowloon 5 lease
(The Remaining Portion of Kowloon Inland Lot Nos. RHMA
1702, 1703 and 1704)
Total gross floor area: 2,240 square meter
Stage of development: Plan for development as

a hotel approved by Town
Planning Development;
demolition work completed;
piling work in progress

Expected completion date: 2012

JUHE HE FJB R AT 123 ~ 125 % 12758

(JURE N HLBE551702 ~ 1703 K 170455 6% BY)

A ST A 2,240°FJ5 &K

B FE B e 0 ) L
BB 2 B a5 R
THREH s THETRIE
AT

FEHAE T HW - R
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o VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Py 2

Percentage held

Address Use Tenure by the Group
AAR A
o s Jjif: £ [ipi g1

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AT 31 MARCH 2010 (continued)
AREFR -F-FEZH =T+ HBHHAEZ2WE (B

III. Properties under development in Hong Kong (continued)

RN ()
2. Nos. 92A-C, Pokfulam Road, Hong Kong Residential Medium term 100%
(Inland Lot No. 7551) et lease
Total gross floor area: 1,877.83 square meter h HA AL A
Stage of development: Modification of lease

approved by District Lands
Office; demolition work
completed; site preparation
work in hand

Expected completion date: 2012

FW WA BO2LAE2CH

(4 b BESB75515%)

e e S B 1,877.83°FJi K

BIERER + M LA 2 5 o OB M BURE
Z bW 5 R TR SRR 5
Hb 8 R P TRR I AR AT

T EHR T H M R
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
#"ofm B Bk A W

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

HRFHAHIBE

At 31 March 2010, the gross and outstanding values of
the Group’s substantial contracts on hand amounted to
approximately HK$6,114 million and HK$4,524 million
respectively. Details of these substantial contracts are set out

M-F—FE=ZHA=Z+—H > KEHZEK
FHAANBMBERRTEAGHEES AR
6,114,000,000% JC % 4,524,000,000%5 7 o I % &
RKFPHEARXZAHAMERBIMT :

below:
Projects Contract value
¥ H 8 R
HK$ million
i 4T
Building Construction
S5 3
Main Contract for the Proposed Rehabilitation of Yue Kwong Chuen Phase 1 103
at 26 Aberdeen Reservoir Road, Aberdeen
A WA KB 2658 WA 58 — BB 1 TR
Construction of Swimming Pool Complex in Area 2, Tung Chung 366
P SR 58 I R i Uk i AR A 3
Supply & Installation of Primary Structure and Provision of Attendance for 52
Construction of Guan Yin Statue, Tsz Shan Monastery Development
at Ting Kok, Tai Po
I RHHAT #8128 1L < B8 i w0 B A 0t I R A A I 4R L R
Design and Construction of a General Outpatient Clinic and an Integrated Community 320
Mental Health Support Services Centre and a Long Stay Care Home
in Tin Shui Wai Area 109
KK B 109 [ 38 74 M55 52 B BORS piis FR B2 38 A o A [ S 32 IR B v o0 B8 IR 000 ol L o st it % B TR
Conversion of Yau Ma Tei Theatre and Red Brick Building into a Xiqu Activity Centre 113
R ol 3t 18K B B AL T B R A 18 il 4 ) o 0
Carcass Work Contract for Proposed Residential Development at Ma On Shan Area 77, 545
S.T.T.L. No. 548, New Territories
Bh7mASEREE 2 B d g TR
Construction of District Open Space in Area 37, Tseung Kwan O and 137

Local Open Space in Area 25, Fanling/Sheung Shui

A B WSS 37 b A AP OB B b S 25 e R A AR b B TR

ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010 £EH&




o VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

#wOoH OB K A R OA

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND
HRFHAHIBE

Projects Contract value
¥ H o B
HKS$ million

H ##0

Construction of a Secondary Boundary Fence and New Section of Primary Boundary Fence 179

and Boundary Patrol Road from Lok Ma Chau Control Point to Ng Tung River
T B 2 A VR 40 o R T A8 A 0 SR A 0 B T B (e RS UM A ) ol A A ) i T A

Construction of Columbarium and Garden of Remembrance at Kiu Tau Road, 428
Wo Hop Shek, Fanling, New Territories
TR AR A S K K B R AL A R L TR

Design and Construction of North Lantau Hospital, Phase 1 (note) 833
e ah S B A A K U Ly B I AR — T ()

Note: Project with a contract sum of HK$1,700 million being undertaken by Leighton-Able Joint Venture,
an unincorporated company in which 49% interest is attributable to the Group.

Al R —ZRBE RS ZIHE > A ITREEETT o ARG R R — 2 R I A 49% R 2

Building Maintenance

B R A%

Term Contract for Conversion of Aqua Privies into Flushing Toilets for which 214

the Architectural Services Department is Responsible

A T R R A oK S BT = ) A

Term Contract for Design and Construction of Alterations, Additions and 375

Improvement Works for Hospitals

At B B B 2 O~ i RlE TR Z ENG A

Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Buildings 328
and Lands and Other Properties for which the Architectural Services Department
is Responsible (Designated Area: Kwun Tong, Mongkok and Yaumatei) (2008-2011)

B g REREEREFARIEFE - D RHAYEZ EEH
(FRE i « BiYE ~ HEA Kiih) (R )N\ERE T ——4)

ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010 £EH& 17




VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
#mom OB K A R A #

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

FRFHAHIBE

Projects

XH

Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance & Repair of Buildings

and Lands and Other Properties for which the Architectural Services Department

is Responsible (Designated Area: Sham Shui Po, Tsuen Wan & Kwai Tsing) (2008-2011)
WO~ - REREEREZ AR T - LR b R EH A M

(FREH I« K ~ ZWRIEF) (CERNERZE——4)

Redecoration Works in Lower Wong Tai Sin (II) Estate
FERA TR (Z ) i 35500 i TR

Replumbing of the Fresh Water Supply System to Lek Yuen Estate
PEVRGR 2 K At R A 0 e TR

Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Aided Schools,

Buildings and Lands and Other Properties for which the Education Bureau is Responsible

B - i - RERECRFRARZIED R - BT - R R ER AR

Main Contract for Upgrading of Electricity Supply to Lok Man Sun Chuen
2 ROBT IR 3R T ) B S 4

Road and Drainage Works, Waterworks and Slope Works
0 B WM LR~ KB LR R TR

Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 2 — Mains in Tsuen Wan

B S B R K A R SR 2 I B — 2ROk A TR

Improvement to Hong Kong Central Mid-level and High Level Areas Water Supply —
Remaining Works, Construction of Service Reservoirs, Pumping Stations

and Associated Main Laying

W B [ 2 1 B DAL i 3k K 5 w0 — R R AR — B I R il K s B AR R KA st

Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains Stage 3 — Mains in Wanchai District

B T A R A it B SR 3 M B — AT WK A AR

Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains Stage 3 — Mains on Hong Kong Island East

B4 G TR A R ) SR 3 Y B — 9 R SRR A TR
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Contract value

A & U
HK$ million
Ix: ¥ 9n

408

19

331

76

45

334

348

362
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND
FRFHAHIBE

Projects

XH

Road, Utilities & External Works in Lamma Power Station and Its Extension and

Miscellaneous Improvement Works

T % T B B s VA B K e R A T TR

Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains Stage 4, Mains in Kowloon —
Condition Survey of Water Mains

B RAE BUKAE TRESE4RE B - JURE KA TR — KA IR LY %%

Provision of External Cable Construction Works and Outside Telecommunication Plant
Maintenance Services for PCCW

16y o AR AR B A P A A e M A A PR

Utilities Civil Engineering

AL AT

Civil Engineering Works Term Contract No. CWT E/30/2008 for PCCW
LR R TR E ]S AR SECWT E/30/2008

OUTSTANDING CONTRACT VALUE
AR5 A KRR

By project category

I H A2

. Building Construction
[ Sge

57% . Building Maintenance

1% Mg PRt

. Utilities Civil Engineering
AR ATH
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Contract value

A & U
HK$ million
Ix: ¥ 9n

16

29

70

75

Road, Drainage, Waterworks and Slope
BRI ~ KRB TR RAHE TR




T DL i i B 5 W
MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION _
AND

ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS e/ 400

Our construction and engineering works are principally carried XS B (@ 58 & TF8 5 4 E 2l A 7] Z fiHE 2
out by the Company’s subsidiaries, Able Engineering Company  ® &R TRARA R (TZR]) - ai TRAMRA
Limited (“Able”), Excel Engineering Company Limited ) ([15#1) K &R @ 54 R A (&R 1)
(“Excel”) and Gadelly Construction Company Limited #E4T ©

(“Gadelly”) respectively.

Able Engineering Company Limited ZRLAAFRAN
Substantial contracts completed by Able during the year under R EIBEFERN » ZRBRZE KRG LB :

review included:

e Term Contract for Design and Construction of Minor RS R A R BT - JURE BT R R
Works to Government and Subvented Properties PR IBURT T il By 4 3 /N B A s TRE A2 5 4
for which the Architectural Services Department is
responsible at Hong Kong, Kowloon, New Territories and
Outlying Islands

e Construction of Ngau Chi Wan Recreation Ground at o B3 KAl 4= jth 35 4R 58 355
Wong Tai Sin, Kowloon

e The Construction of a Primary School at Development o  7EBIIEE#ARE ZHEME 2 B RIEHE B/

near Choi Wan Road and Jordan Valley, Kwun Tong 2
e  Fitting-out Works for Podium of the Proposed Residential e 7 5 i B W [ 58 86 [ 6 B W w7 M B 5870
Development (Package One) at TKOTL No. 70, Area 86, R AERRER CEIRR) ZFEN

Site F, Tseung Kwan O KT
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During the year under review, Able was awarded the following
substantial contract with an aggregate contract value of

approximately HK$1,535 million:

e Design and Construction of a General Outpatient Clinic
and an Integrated Community Mental Health Support
Services Centre and a Long Stay Care Home in Tin Shui
Wai Area 109

e Conversion of Yau Ma Tei Theatre and Red Brick
Building into a Xiqu Activity Centre

e  Construction of District Open Space in Area 37, Tseung
Kwan O and Local Open Space in Area 25, Fanling/
Sheung Shui

e  Construction of a Secondary Boundary Fence and New
Section of Primary Boundary Fence and Boundary Patrol
Road from Lok Ma Chau Control Point to Ng Tung River

e Construction of Columbarium and Garden of
Remembrance at Kiu Tau Road, Wo Hop Shek, Fanling,
N.T.

e Redecoration Works in Lower Wong Tai Sin (II) Estate

e Replumbing of the Fresh Water Supply System to Lek
Yuen Estate

e Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions,
Maintenance and Repair of Aided Schools, Building and
Lands and Other Properties for which the Education
Bureau is Responsible

In addition, during the year under review, a joint venture
named Leighton-Able Joint Venture, which was established
between Able (49%) and another unaffiliated major
contractor in Hong Kong (51%), secured a significant contract
for the Design and Construction of North Lantau Hospital,
Phase 1 with a contract sum of approximately HK$1,700

million.

Subsequent to the year end and up to the date of this report,
Able was awarded the substantial Main Contract Works for
the Proposed Redevelopment of Yuen Long Sports Complex
with a contract value of HK$70 million.

PR EN > KRG T ERGH > TRH
{E#91,535,000,000% JC

o RUKEH109ME & @R & B Bk #hs e 8
5 f Bk Ik S 4 M v B IR ) o L e L
T

o AU R M e M AL 2 AR 18k th 95 B o

o IS EIVRE3TIW M I AR B M A BOKEE
25 1 45 4 R U b 2 Bl TR

o B S I A % AR R AR O T I R B
(o 9% 15 O A7 o) il R A ) 0 TR

o RS B B A U K K K R A
A B TR

o FERANTTER (D) AR A AR
o PEURTEZ AR PLE R A E e AR

o HE-mE - REMECEFTRATZIEY
B T R R H A EZ A

BEAh > R [T RBAE BE A > PR 5 — B A o
SR T AR — KR K ARM49% 0 W
T B 7 o SR WA 5 1% > WIS 3w B B
HAL R L BB SR — B2 H > SR B 1788
7]: o

B R DLR H AR KR EAHE B > RS
R AT WEE) G 2 B TR AAH
fE7 T #E#IT -
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Excel Engineering Company Limited and Gadelly
Construction Company Limited
Substantial contracts completed by Excel during the year

under review included:

e Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains Stage 1
Phase 2 — Mains on Hong Kong Islands

e Trenching Works for Reinstatement of Tin Wan —
Kennedy Road 275KV Circuits and for Connection of
Cyberport — Marsh Road 275 KV Circuits at Kai Lung
Wan Reservoir Road

e Concrete Repairs and Painting Protection Works for

Block 16 to Block 51 at Sha Tau Kok Chuen

During year under review, Excel was awarded the following
substantial contracts with an aggregate contract value of
approximately HK$691 million:

e Provision of External Cable Construction Works and
Outside Telecommunication Plant Maintenance Services
for PCCW

e Carcass Work Contract — Proposed Residential
Development at Ma On Shan Area 77, S.T.T.L. No. 548,
New Territories

e Main Contract for Upgrading of Electricity Supply to Lok
Man Sun Chuen

During year under review, Gadelly was awarded the substantial
contract for the Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water
Mains Stage 4, Mains in Kowloon — Condition Survey of
Water Mains with a contract value of approximately HK$29
million.

Property Investment

For the year under review, the Group recorded a gross rental
income of approximately HK$15,943,000, up 36% from
HK$11,687,000 for the previous year. The increase was
primarily caused by the general recovered property market

conditions in Hong Kong.

2k TR AR 5 B B8 A 2 A WA

R [ BEAR FE N > 16 28 58 R OB A B4

o HHRRBBUKA B IRBOR L - W R
KA TR

o FFEAKBEEHNEBEREHESTREE
AL e MO s B S 27 5T AR o 4 g 2
AL T

o UDIHAAN B 16ME F A5 1 {R B A5 b
R TR

R EEAE N > BB T ERAL > TREA
{H #1691,000,000% JG :

te) o A 28R P A3t 5 A o AR B I M A R

B 77 e R TR

48 BOBT IR P2 THE ) BEHE A 40

T o] R A BE Y > IR I B AT B R e S A 1R KA
S AEA4RE B > JUBE K TR — K IR L 2 Y
\RAH > TRAMEX29,000,0008 G ©

WEBE

PEBEEER KEFBHGSEAMESEBRARD
15,943,000% JC » 1 2 4 Z 11,687,000% J¢ b F+
36% o SAM WA LT B ERE HRF B ET L
W 8 15 T L -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to HK$209,022,000 (excluding pledged deposits
of HK$1,075,000), representing an increase by 1.2% from
2009 of HK$206,591,000 (excluding pledged deposits of
HK$5,512,000). Current ratio, measured as total current assets
divided by total current liabilities, stood soundly at 1.2 as of
31 March 2010, as compared to 2009 of 1.1.

Meanwhile, bank overdrafts and loans at 31 March 2010
decreased by 1% to approximately HK$576,877,000, as
compared to 2009 of HK$583,150,000. At 31 March 2010, the
Group’s net gearing has further reduced to 60%, as compared
to 89% for 2009. Net gearing ratio was measured as total
bank borrowings less pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, divided by total shareholders’ equity.

At 31 March 2010 and 2009, the Group’s bank borrowings
were all denominated in Hong Kong dollars and on a floating
rate basis. Due to the general decrease in market rates,
interest paid and payable (before capitalization) for the year
under review decreased sharply by 51% to HK$9,356,000
for the year under review (2009: HK$19,041,000). Interest
of HK$2,037,000 (2009: HK$233,000) was capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of properties under
development during the year under review. As a result, interest
expense for the year under review was HK$7,319,000, down
61% from HK$18,808,000 for the previous year.

Our banking facilities, comprising primarily bank loans and
overdrafts, amounted to approximately HK$1,289 million
at 31 March 2010 (2009: HK$1,091 million), of which
approximately HK$687 million (2009: HK$465 million) was

unutilised.

Y %5 ol i

O & A B W

MR —REZH=Z1—H > REFZ B4 KB
& A W) 3£209,022,000% 76 OF 4 75 T K41 2 17
#1,075,000¥ 78) > 8~ F L4 2206,591,000
Wt (A B CHE I Z 17 3K5,512,000% 7T) B4
1.2% o 3 B be 3 (DL A 7 ) 3 ik DA 48R ) B £
PR _F-FE=ZA=ZT—H¥EMEL2, =
FRENLFEASLL -

BGEFE R R B -FE=ZA=1—H > 147
53 T BRI A 1% E £9576,877,0008 00 » =&
FIUAER%583,150,0008 06 » R ZF—F4E=ZH
Et—H > REBZFERAMBILE (DBITMH
KA D AR R B B R B S > BRDA
A B RORE 25 FH AT B A B R IIAE Z89% R F
F60% °

MR RZFRZNE=ZH=1—H > REH
B BRAT A Ak AT » IR B ARG
FE o HR T 35 A) R IE RS o [l B AR B R 5T
R AL B A B 32 KR I8 4251% %29,356,000
Wt (ZRFILE 119,041,000 70) o F B ELAESE
7 > F) E.2,037,0008 5T (ZFFIJLAF ¢+ 233,000%
J0) CE AL BB R IR E A -
PR > [T R P ) B 52 M 7,319,000 457G
1% 2:4£18,808,000 8 TC I A 61% °

WATGEH (FEBFHRBITERREL) R -
—RE=ZH=E21—H ZHEBH IE491,289,000,000
#ot (ZFZ LA 1 1,091,000,000%56) » Hi 4
687,000,000% 7C ( ZFZJL4: : 465,000,000 7C)
WA A
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Charges on Assets

At 31 March 2010, assets pledged in favour of certain banks
to secure the banking facilities of the Group included bank
balance and fixed deposits of approximately HK$1,075,000
(2009: HK$5,512,000), investment properties with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$689,250,000 (2009:
HK$469,150,000), buildings with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately HK$9,507,000 (2009: HK$9,766,000),
prepaid land lease payments with aggregate carrying values
of approximately HK$111,970,000 (2009: HK$114,985,000),
hotel under construction of HK$132,719,000 (2009:
HK$127,000,000, classified as properties held for
development) and property held for sale of HK$40,833,000
(2009: HK$40,833,000). In addition, accounts receivable of
certain construction contracts of the Group were assigned in
favour of certain banks to secure the banking facilities at 31
March 2010.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2010, the Group had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees amounting to HK$24,525,000 (2009:
HK$19,325,000) in respect of performance bonds in favour of

contract customers.

In the ordinary course of the Group’s construction business,
the Group has been subject to a number of claims due to
personal injuries suffered by employees of the Group or the
Group’s subcontractors in accidents arising out of and in the
course of their employment. The directors are of the opinion
that such claims are well covered by insurance and would not
result in any material adverse impact on the financial position

or results and operations of the Group.

¥

M- —RE=ZA=1—H » O T THAT
URGBALEHZPITFRBEZERE B : 847
Al B B I AE K 491,075,000 08 (—FF U4 ¢
5,512,000%70) ~ & ¥ H41689,250,000% 78 (=
BRI 1 469,150,0009 58) ~ M52 419,507,000
Wt (ZFFJULE £ 9,766,000 J6) ~ AT + it
FHE A BB A111,970,0009% 6 (ZFFJLE -
114,985,000% J5) ~ @& v 1 5 £9132,719,000
WE(ZRELE AR AEBRZIDE
127,000,000 70 ) K ¥¢F 1 th B Z 1 3£40,833,000
Wt (ZFZIJUEE £ 40,833,0008 58) © BLAb »
“E-REEA=ZT—H REEETRESH
A WO 2k L T 3 T 8RAT > DU R AT &
%A o

B AR £ 4%

MN_F—RE=ZH=+—H  KEHRBTH
REPZIBARBING TRATHIER L ELH
24,525,000% 70 (ZFFJLAE : 19,325,00087C) ©

TEASRE Z H @S EBORIR T - B A F 5
A 4 J R O T 2 R B R S 1 A0 ) T T AP DL B
55 10 1) A 4% [ o A R R D R R B
ZZBRAEE O B R A AR G I B IR
S VS-S 3 1 Y RRUE OGN N2
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STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 March 2010, the Group employed 338 full-time staff
in Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its staff based on
their performance and work experience and the prevailing
market rates. Staff benefits include mandatory provident fund,

medical insurance and training programmes.

The Company also maintains a share option scheme. The
purposes of the share option scheme are to provide incentives
for the full-time employees and executives, to recognise their
contributions to the growth of the Group and to provide
more flexibility for the Group in formulating its remuneration

policy.

B K 55 T R

MR —FEZA = —H > A
3BH/AMMB L - REMMEE T2 LB - TIE
K R2EBGNIGEBUEER THM - BT
TR LG e AR A~ BB SR A

BEAh > A2 B S TR AN SRR 8 > B AR B 4
Wete 5 XATBON B > R FE AR B RZH
WK > S A 5 A A TR A SR A A
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung, aged 47, is the Chairman of
the Company. Mr. Ngai has extensive experience in the
construction industry. He is responsible for the management of
the Board and the strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Ngai
and Mr. Yau Kwok Fai, Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, are brothers-in-law.

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai, aged 44, is the Deputy Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Yau graduated
with First Class Honours Degree in Civil Engineering from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic and obtained a Master of Science
Degree with Distinction in Structural Steel Design from the
University of London and a Diploma of the Imperial College
of the United Kingdom. He is a Chartered Engineer and
a corporate member of the Institution of Civil Engineers,
the Institution of Structural Engineers and the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, a Registered Professional Engineer
(Civil & Structural) and a Registered Structural Engineer.
Mr. Yau is responsible for formulating the policy and
overall development and the day-to-day management and
administration of the Group’s operations. Mr. Yau and Mr.

Ngai, Chairman of the Company, are brothers-in-law.

Mr. LI Chi Pong, aged 53, is an Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Li is the Managing Director of Excel
Engineering Company Limited and is responsible for its
overall management and operation. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic with a Higher Diploma in Civil
Engineering in 1979. He has worked in the construction
industry for 30 years and gained extensive experience in
the executive role in construction companies. He is the
Authorized Signatory for foundation, site formation works and
general building contractor of the Buildings Department. Mr.
Li is a member of the Contractors Registration Committee

Panel.

g

AT HE A

BRHEEAE > 475K > ARF T - ML E
RV WS - AR EERF AR
A B SR AL ) AR o BRSS AR T AC A L A R
B AT B A8 e B e A 2 KB o

Ui BURESE 2 > 445% » A W] B B RATBOARE -
WeFe A B v B LA e LR TRE B2 — AR e 2 1 22
i > JLAR DL B S S AT S 1 i SR B A e
st BEAHAE BT > DL R A B R e A 3 SR - A
Fy S B AR HE TARAW ~ LR TRERTER A - A5hE AR
fili 24 e A vk TRE R B G 2 E & B o S ki
MR TREAN (hA K A5HE) Bk i 4548 TRR A - i
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Mr. MAK Hon Kuen Peter, aged 33, was appointed an
Executive Director of the Company on 1 April 2008. Mr.
Mak has over 9 years’ experience in investment management.
Previously, he has held various positions with investment
banks and hedge fund, including Merrill Lynch, Credit Suisse,
DKR Oasis. He holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce, with
dean’s honour, from The University of British Columbia,
Canada. He is principally responsible for capital finance

matters of the Company.

Non-executive Director

Mr. SHEK Yu Ming Joseph, aged 65, is a Non-executive
Director of the Company. He is the Business Consultant of
the Company. Mr. Shek holds a Bachelor Degree in Civil
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong. He is a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, a Fellow
of the Institution of Civil Engineers, an Authorised Person
(Engineer) and a Registered Structural Engineer. He has over
20 years’ experience in the executive role in construction
companies and has completed a large number of contracts for
the Hong Kong Government and the private sector. Mr. Shek
is a member of the Appeal Tribunal (Buildings Ordinance
Chapter 123), a member of the Registered Contractors’
Disciplinary Board (2002-2008), a member of Review Panel
under the Land (Miscellaneous Provisions) (Amendment)
Ordinance (2007-2010), a member of the Planning Sub-
Committee of the Land and Building Advisory Committee
of the Development Bureau (2007-2009), a Council Member
(1997-2008) and Chairman of Environmental Committee
(1995-2003) of the Hong Kong Construction Association.

LM > 3358 > M BFE)FENH—Hl#
TAER AR N F Z AT HE S > e 4 R RE 4 BLRY
WJUAE BRI o D R RAT R W RS (B
FEMK ~ Hi4E ~ DKR Oasis) #EEA MBS o BF6H
Jn%E KThe University of British Columbia # &
BB o R R EA TR E ZE AN
B o

AT g

LM WA > 655% > RA R IERMATER o A
A Z BB - AlARERBRELATRE
FE BT o k75 TR & ok TR A
BOBEERGE B AL (TRA) Kk i 45 6%
TR o AR 5 A W) AT BB S A T
ARIR B o R AR T VS BURT I A B & TR
I AR A B R EEHN (BB EL123
%) Bk R ADAZZE - iR LA
Z B E(2002-2008) ~ = Al (3 T 46 SC) B A% [ K
H(2007-2010) ~ BRFEHE T LM RERHHNEZR
7 KB /N H (2007-2009) M i 6 1t 48 v € B 2
(1997-2008) e B {4 Z H & £ ¥ (1995-2003) °
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor KO Jan Ming, aged 67, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company. Professor Ko is the Vice
President and the Chair Professor of Structural Engineering of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Professor Ko holds a
Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering and a Doctorate Degree
in Structural Engineering from the University of Hong Kong.
He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
the Institution of Structural Engineers of United Kingdom,
the American Society of Civil Engineers and the Hong Kong
Academy of Engineering Sciences.

Professor Ko was Chairman of the Accreditation Board
(2001-2006) of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
and the Chairman of Hong Kong Economic Cooperation
(APEC) and Engineering Mobility Forum (EMF) Monitoring
Committees (2006-2009). He is a Member of Construction
Industry Council (2007-2013), a Member of the Commission
on Strategic Development (2009-2012) and the Advisor of
the Beijing-Hong Kong Academic Exchange Centre. He was a
Governing Council Member of Construction Industry Institute
(Hong Kong) (2002-2008), a Council Member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Science (2002-2006), the President of The
Hong Kong Society of Theoretical and Applied Mechanics
(1999/2000), the President of The Hong Kong Association for
the Advancement of Science and Technology (2000/01) and
a Panel Member of the Appeal Tribunal in Buildings of the
HKSAR (1997-2004).

Professor Ko is a Guest Professor of the Southeast University,
Beijing Polytechnic University, Zhejiang University, Huagiao
University, Hohai University, an Advisory Professor of the
Beijing University of Aeronautics & Astronautics, PRC and
a Chair Professor, National Chung Hsing University, Taiwan
(2006-2009). He is a Co-chair of the Scientific Committee of
the Joint Research Laboratory on Earth Observation (2005-
2008), Co-chair of the Scientific Steering Committee, State
Key Laboratory on Structural Dynamics in Bridge Engineering,
Chongqging Communications Research and Design Institute
(2008-2012), and a Member of the Scientific Steering
Committee, State Key Laboratory on Disaster Reduction in
Civil Engineering, Tongji University (2009-2013).
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Professor Ko is the Editor-in-Chief of an International
Journal — Advances in Structural Engineering (1997-2003),
Editor-in-Chief (Asia-Pacific), International Journal — Smart
Structures and Systems, the Senior Consultant of the Editorial
Board of the Journal of Spatial Structures, a member of the
Editorial Boards of the Journal of Engineering Mechanics,
Journal of Earthquake and Engineering Vibration and Journal
of Hazards Prevention and Mitigation Engineering. He was the
President of Asian-Pacific Network of Centres for Earthquake
Engineering (2005-2007), a Vice President (2004-2007) and
Council Member of the International Society for Structural
Health Monitoring of Intelligent Infrastructures, and a
Management Board Member of the Asian-Pacific Network
of Centres for Research in Smart Structures Technology.
He was the Vice President of the Board of Directors of
Structural Engineers World Congress 2002, the Chairman
of the International Conference on Advances in Building
Technology (2002), the Co-Chair of the International
Conference on Advances and New Challenges in Earthquake
Engineering Research (2002), and the Annual International
Symposium on Smart Structures and Materials (2003 to 2005).

Professor Ko’s research interests are Structural Dynamics,
Vibration Monitoring & Control, System Identification, and
Damage Detection.

TR B O I O ) R R o R ) Y AT A iR
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The Hon. IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP, aged 58, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company. The Hon. Ip is a
member of the Legislative Council representing the District
Council functional constituency. He is presently a Deputy
to the 11th National People’s Congress of PRC for HKSAR,
Chairman of Panel on Home Affairs, Legislative Council,
an Advisor of the Democratic Alliance for Betterment and
Progress of Hong Kong, Member of Central & Western
District Council (Kwun Lung). He also serves on a number of
committees and is now a member of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority, the member of Court of the University of Hong
Kong. The Hon. Ip has been a member of the Legislative
Council between 1995-1997, a member of the Provisional
Legislative Council between 1997-1998, a member of the
Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR Government
representing the district council functional constituency
between 2000-2004 and an elected member of the Central and
Western District Council between 1992-2003.

Mr. FUNG Pui Cheung Eugene, aged 61, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Fung is a
Certified Public Accountant, a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
both The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England &
Wales and The Certified General Accountants’ Association
of Canada. He holds a Master of Arts Degree from Antioch
University of USA. Presently, Mr. Fung is a director of
Pan-China (HK) CPA Limited (formerly known as NCN
CPA Limited) as well as practicing as a sole proprietor
in the name of P. C. Fung & Company, Certified Public
Accountants. Previously, he served in senior and managerial
positions in large local and international accounting firms.
In addition, Mr. Fung is currently an Honorary Associate
of Baptist University, School of Business, a Committee
member of The Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’
Association, a Standing Committee member of Democratic
Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong and
a Standing Committee member of the Jiangxi Provincial
Overseas Liaison Association. Mr. Fung was also appointed a
member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel, under the
Financial Reporting Council and a member of the IRD Users

Committee.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. POON Yan Min, aged 48, is a Director of Excel
Engineering Company Limited, a major subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Poon holds a Bachelor Degree in Civil
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree in Engineering Management from City University
of Hong Kong. He is a corporate member of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers and a Registered Professional
Engineer (Civil). He has over 24 years’ experience in the
construction of road and drainage, site formation, waterworks
and building works including 10 years working in Mass
Transit Railway Corporation for tunnel and railway works.
Mr. Poon is responsible for the Construction Department
on implementation of works and the overall management
of contracts. He is the Authorized Signatory for general
building contractor of the Buildings Department. He is also
the Engineer Supervisor of the HKIE Scheme A Training for

Graduate Engineers.

Mr. YAM Kui Hung, aged 51, is a Director of Able
Engineering Company Limited, a major subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Yam graduated with a Higher Certificate in
Building Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and a
Postgraduate Diploma in Construction Management from the
Construction Industry Training Authority. He is a corporate
member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, a
Registered Professional Engineer (Building) and has over 29
years’ experience in the construction field. He is responsible
for overall management and operations of building projects.
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Mr. HO Chi Ming Wilson, aged 48, is the Project Manager
of Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. Ho holds a
Bachelor Degree in Construction Management and Economic
from the Curtin University of Technology, a National
Diploma in Building Studies from the Business & Technician
Education Council and a Higher Certificate in Building
Studies and Proficiency Certificate in Industrial Safety from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic. Mr. Ho is a corporate member
of the Chartered Institute of Building, has registered as an
Authorized Signatory from the Buildings Department and
has over 27 years’ experience in the project management
in the construction field and a wide background of working
experience in residential, commercial and institutional
developments. He is responsible for providing full range of
building project management and contract administration

works of contracts.

Mr. NG Kai Chow, aged 42, is the Project Manager of Able
Engineering Company Limited. Mr. Ng holds a Postgraduate
Diploma in Construction Law & Arbitration and a Diploma
in Construction (CEM) in the College of Estate Management.
He is an incorporate member of the Chartered of Building,
a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and
Authorized Signatory from Buildings Department. He also
has over 25 years’ experience in construction field and
working in different positions in the construction industry.
He is responsible for providing full range of building project

management and contract administration works of contracts.

Mr. NG Wing Yuk Philip, aged 52, is the Project Manager
of Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. Ng graduated
with Bachelor Degree in Administration from the Newport
University of United States of America and a Diploma in
Construction Management from the Hong Kong Construction
Industry Training Authority. He is a corporate member of
the Hong Kong Institution of Construction Engineers and
has over 30 years’ experience in the project management
in the construction field and a wide background of working
experience in residential, commercial and institutional
developments. He is responsible for providing full range of
building project management and contract administration

works of contracts.
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Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel, aged 42, is the Project Manager of
Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor
Degree in Construction Management from the South Bank
University of United Kingdom and a Higher Diploma in
Building Technology and Management from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic. He is a corporate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers and has over 17 years’
experience in construction field and working in different
positions in the construction industry. He is responsible for
providing full range of building project management and

contract administration works of contracts.

Mr. KAN Kwok Kit, aged 47, is the Commercial Manager
of Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. Kan graduated
with Master Degree of Science in Engineering Business
Management. He is a Registered Professional Engineer in
Building Services Discipline and Corporate Member of the
Chartered Institute of Building. He is also a fellow member
and Branch Committee of the Chartered Institute of Plumbing
& Heating Engineering, and a member of the Guangzhou
Haizhu District Standing Committee of The CPPCC National.
He has over 22 years’ experience in Construction Industry
and Building Services Engineering. Mr. Kan is responsible
for tendering, providing full range of building project
management and contract administration works of contracts.
He is also the Head of the Building Services Department
that responsible for all matters relating to Building Services/
Electrical & Mechanical provisions for all projects.

Ms. PANG Fung Ming, aged 40, is the qualified accountant
and company secretary of the Company. Ms. Pang is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of the U.K. She has over 18 years’ accounting
and related experience. She holds a Bachelor Degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong.

Mr. WONG Kei Leung, aged 59, is the Accounting Manager
of the Group and the Chief Accountant of Able Engineering
Company Limited. He has over 32 years’ accounting
experience. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor Degree in Commercial
Science and Business Administration from Chu Hai College.
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The Group recognises the importance in maintaining high
standards of corporate governance and believes that good
corporate governance is fundamental to enhancing the
confidence of the investors and minimising our exposure to

risks.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board is composed of eight Directors, including four
Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and three

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the Group’s business. All Directors
have separate and independent access to the advice and
services of the senior management and the company secretary
with a view to ensuring that board procedures, and all

applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for
a fixed specific term. The Company confirmed that it
has received from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and they are
considered to be independent.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board
include those relating to:

e the strategic plans and directions, and financial objectives
of the Group;

e monitoring the performance of the management;

e implementing and monitoring an effective framework of
internal controls and risk management;

e ensuring that the Company has good corporate
governance and is in compliance with applicable laws and

regulations.
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Responsibilities over day-to-day operations are delegated FEBUTHEFWEET » FHEA T H W ELE -

to the management under the leadership of the Executive

Directors.

The Board meets regularly to review the overall strategy and

to monitor the operation as well as the financial performance

of the Group. For all of the Board meetings, proper and

sufficient notices, adequate information including agenda

and accompanying board papers are supplied and sent to all

Directors in reasonable time.

Directors’ Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings for Year

2009/10

Directors

g

Executive Directors

Mr. Ngai Chun Hung
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai

Mr. Li Chi Pong

Mr. Mak Hon Kuen Peter

Non-executive Director
Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph

Independent Non-executive Directors
Professor Ko Jan Ming

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, Eugene
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Meetings attended/held

L Y Tia g
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee

H HMERG ERERE

4/4

4/4 1/1

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4 1/1 2/2
4/4 1/1 2/2
4/4 1/1 2/2
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APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Company’s existing bye-laws, all directors
(including those appointed for a specific term, chairman and
managing director) are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at each annual general meeting at least once every
three years. In addition, directors appointed during the year
as an addition to the Board or to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board are subject to retirement and election by shareholders at

the first general meeting following their appointment.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEQO)
of the Company are separately performed by Mr. Ngai Chun
Hung and Mr. Yau Kwok Fai respectively. Mr. Ngai Chun
Hung and Mr. Yau Kwok Fai are brothers-in-law.

This segregation ensures a clear division of the Chairman’s
responsibilities for the management of the Board and the
CEQO’s responsibilities for the day-to-day management of the
Company’s business.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the
Board, and ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at board meetings and that Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The Chairman has an additional or casting vote in
the event of an equality of votes on any matter to be decided

by the Board.

The CEO is appointed by the Board and is responsible for
providing leadership for the management, implementing and
reporting to the Board on the Group’s strategy, overseeing the
day-to-day operations of the Group and providing all such
information to the Board as is necessary to enable the Board to
monitor the performance of the management.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee was established on 8
September 2000 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee’s

terms of reference are available on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee is now made up of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Professor Ko Jan Ming,
The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. Fung Pui Cheung,
Eugene. Professor Ko Jan Ming is currently the chairman
of the Audit Committee. Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, Eugene is
a certified public accountant and possesses the appropriate

accounting qualifications and experiences in financial matters.

The Audit Committee holds regular meetings at lease twice a
year to review the Company’s annual and interim reports and
accounts. The Audit Committee meets with the Company’s
external auditors at least once a year to review the Company’s

annual report and accounts.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s Remuneration Committee was established
on 16 December 2005 with written terms of reference
and consists of a majority of Independent Non-executive
Directors. The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to
set policy on executive directors’ remuneration and for fixing
remuneration packages for all directors. The Remuneration
Committee’s terms of reference are available on the
Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is now made up of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Professor Ko
Jan Ming, The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. Fung Pui
Cheung, Eugene, and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Yau
Kwok Fai. Professor Ko Jan Ming is currently the chairman of

the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to
reviewed the remuneration of Executive Directors and make

recommendations to the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transactions. Following
specific enquiry made by the Company, the Directors have
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2010.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
Full details of the Directors’ interests in the shares of the

Company are set out in the Reports of the Directors on pages

45 to 46.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the
remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors, Ernst

& Young, is set out below:

Audit services
Non-audit services:

Taxation services

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective system of internal control to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets, and for

reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system, including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training

programmes and budget, on a continuous and regular basis.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communication with shareholders and
investors in general. The various channels via which the
Company communicates with its shareholders include interim
and annual reports, information on the Stock Exchange‘s and

the Company’s website, and general meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s
general meetings where the Chairman and the Executive
Directors of the Board are available to answer questions.
Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual directors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company’s bye-laws provide that shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth of the Company’s paid-up capital
carrying voting rights have at all times the right to request
the Board to call a special general meeting to discuss specified
business transactions. The Board is required to call such
meeting within two months after the deposit of a written
notice by such shareholders.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of
the shareholders at general meetings of the Company must
be taken by poll. The Chairman will therefore demand a poll
for every resolution put to the vote of general meetings of the
Company.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flows for that year.

The external auditors of the Company acknowledge their
reporting responsibilities in their auditors’ report on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010 as set
out in the Report of the Auditors on pages 51 to 52.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

The directors are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and the provision of corporate management services.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 and the
states of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 53 to 152.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend

for the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and financial positions of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements is set out on page 5 of the
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 14 and 16 to the financial statements. Details of the

Group’s properties are set out on pages 11 to 15.

BANK LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and borrowings of the Group as at 31

March 2010 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share
capital during the year. Movements in the Company’s issued
share capital of the Company and share options and the
reasons therefor are set out in notes 31 and 32 to the financial

statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to

existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2010, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
approximately HK$69,476,000. In addition, the Company’s
share premium account, in the amount of approximately
HK$168,487,000 at 31 March 2010, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions of

approximately HK$36,000 (2009: HK$58,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, contract revenue earned from the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 95% (2009:
96%) of the total contract revenue for the year and contract
revenue earned from the largest customer included therein
accounted for approximately 81% (2009: 77%).

Subcontracting charges paid to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 37% (2009: 38%) of the
total subcontracting charges and material costs incurred for
the year. Subcontracting charges paid to the largest supplier

included therein accounted for approximately 12% (2009:
13%).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five

largest customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung (Chairman)
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Chi Pong
Mr. Mak Hon Kuen Peter

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Professor Ko Jan Ming

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung Eugene

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Shek Yu
Ming Joseph and The Hon. Ip Kwok Him will retire by
rotation, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The appointment of each of Professor Ko Jan Ming, The Hon.
Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. Fung Pui Cheung Eugene, as
extended based on the respective agreement between them
and the Company, was for a term of two years expiring on 31
August 2010.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received from each of Professor Ko Jan
Ming, The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. Fung Pui
Cheung Eugene an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), and the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 26 to 33

of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Both Mr. Ngai Chun Hung and Mr. Yau Kwok Fai have
entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial period of three years commencing from 1 September
2000 and such contracts continue thereafter until terminated
by either party by giving a six-month written notice.

Mr. Li Chi Pong has entered into a service contract with
the Group that commenced from 17 May 2004 and continue
without a fixed period until terminated by either party by

giving a six-month written notice.

Mr. Mak Hon Kuen Peter has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial period of one year, which
commenced on 1 April 2008 and has been extended to 31
March 2011.

Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph entered into a continuous service
contract with the Company in respect of his service as a Non-

executive Director commencing from 1 January 2007.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
The directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the

financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the

year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. Ngai Chun Hung (“Mr. Ngai”) is a director and substantial
shareholder of Winflower Investment Limited, Win Source
Investment Limited, Key Fame Limited and Key Fund Limited,
which are companies incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged
in property investment.

In addition, Mr. Ngai’s son, Mr. Ngai Wing Yin, who is
aged over 18, holds a 75% beneficial interest in Lanon
Development Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and engaged in construction, maintenance and engineering
contract works.

The power to make material business decisions for the Group
is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board considers that
there may be a conflict of interest between the Group and
any Director, such Director (including Mr. Ngai who is the
Chairman of the Board and a substantial shareholder of the
Company) will be required to abstain from voting. Therefore,
the Board is capable of carrying on the Group’s business
independently of, and at arm’s length, from the business of Mr.
Ngai.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective associates is interested in any business which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

A

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

At 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of
the directors in the share capital of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of director Notes
WA g3
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung (a)
B4 e S A

Mr. Yau Kwok Fai (b)
e 1 5 A

Mr. Li Chi Pong
&R E

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him
E b itk B

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung Eugene
R e

Capital and

nature of interest

5B B il 2 4

As founder and beneficiary of

a discretionary trust
2 — W 15 45 WE oL A R 32 28\
Personal

fEA

Though a controlled corporation

B 2 o M S A

Personal

fiA

Personal

fiA

Personal

fEA

A

A A5 A B R AR

Number of
ordinary

shares held

P 5 A B O H
838,760,400

5,406,000

844,166,400

30,888,000

7,347,200

844,800

364,800
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Percentage of
the Company’s
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AL F AT
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0.36%

56.75%
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0.49%

0.06%

0.02%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT o 8 B Ay B AT W B e A B R AT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING (%)

SHARES (continued)

Notes: M Et -

(a) These shares are legally and beneficially owned by Winhale Ltd.  (a) % B HHWinhale Led. ([ Winhale 1) ¥ & &
(“Winhale”), which is a company incorporated in the British Virgin 5 BEA o % A F) G0 e Ak T O B Rk e on
Islands with limited liability and is ultimately beneficially owned by Z A MR AT > 3 fXyston Trusthe B EH IR HER -
Xyston Trust. Xyston Trust is a discretionary family trust set up by Mr. XystonTrust)5 B 21 S8 2k 5% r 2 — JH 2 WE R G 5
Ngai for the benefits of Mr. Ngai and his family members. WG ZAWARMBARNFHRBERHE -

(b) These shares are legally and beneficially owned by Business Success  (b) % B4} HiBusiness Success Limited¥: & & B 25
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is legally and o FATR Z 2 CBAT ATt ek B e &
beneficially owned by Mr. Yau. HIHEA -

Share options of the Company: K2 w] JE IR

At At Exercise
Date of grant 31 March During the year 31 March Exercise period price
(dfmfy) 2009 RAER 2010 (d/mly) (HK$)

Director BTHE  ROZRRAE Granted  Exercised — R_%F—%4 T RRi g

H (H/A/%E)  ZA=Z+—H &7 it =ZA=1+—H (H/A/E)  (#7)

Ngai Chun Hung 31/08/2007 844,800 - - 844,300 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.40

B o e

Yau Kwok Fai 31/08/2007 8,448,000 - - 8,448,000 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.40

i I

Shek Yu Ming Joseph 31/08/2007 8,448,000 - - 8,448,000 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.40

AT

Li Chi Pong 31/08/2007 8,448,000 - - 8,448,000 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.40

S

Ko Jan Ming 31/08/2007 844,800 - - 844,800 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.40

B )

Mak Hon Kuen Peter 02/06/2008 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 02/12/2008 - 01/12/2013 0.79

E3i L

In addition to the above, certain directors have non- B EXFEFI » FTEEFRERAFTDFEFET
beneficial personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries &2 72 JEE S A BB HERS » LB Al0KE 2y 3
held for the benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of 577 # 2 7 M v i 1 B 2 7 R s 3 B 2 5 AR
complying with the previous minimum company membership — #lE o #5 T 3 25 5 #4325 2 8 45 S50 B 908 7
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. B4y Efizh » 5B BB LM G RS
Certain directors also have beneficial interests in non-voting  BGHCHUTAT B 5 & 58 1 2 5 B 3 & 3 ik
deferred shares in a subsidiary which practically carry no rights 3k & b 3% 52 5 7 Bt )& 2 5] 7 4 R 2 514 T 4
to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any ~ Jk ©

general meeting or to participate in any distribution on the

winding-up of the subsidiary.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the
directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests in
contract” and “Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5
August 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (“2002 Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 17 August 2000.

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company are

disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

240 B B B A W B B vl 2 A R AT
(#1)

Br BT BEHS > R B -FEZH=A4—
Hoo R4 8 2 B 90 B M6k 1) 545 3 5 240k 2 S A A
o AR B¢ B A S i 2 2R A A D e W 22 T 2 B
SE > Sl HE R U A A ) AT A U 3
Z By SR B JBE A v A AR B IR AT o

o 230 O B Oy oA B 2 2 B A

Rl # 2 & AMERS | R [ % 7 R B A B B Ay
W A i T %R | T B T e R A > TR A AR AT
T RERT Y > ACZ ] ZAEMT % - %54 B Z LA
SRR AR 1 2 > MR 8 452 T A o A 0 T
NS A ) B A o R 5 ORI 2 > 0 S
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

A

OUTSTANDING SHARE OPTIONS
Details of options outstanding at 31 March 2010 to subscribe

for shares of the Company granted pursuant to the 2002

Option Scheme are set out below:

Grantees

A

Directors # 3¢

Ngai Chun Hung
B

Yau Kwok Fai

it I

Shek Yu Ming Joseph
AT

Li Chi Pong

ESGE

Ko Jan Ming

3L

Mak Hon Kuen Peter
A

Employees 1§ H
In aggregate

o

Date of
grant
(dfmfy)
BYam
(H/A/E)
31/08/07
31/08/07
31/08/07
31/08/07

31/08/07

02/06/08

07/12/06

At

31 March
2009
RRRRAE
Sy ET
844,800
8,448,000
8,448,000
8,448,000

844,800

7,500,000

540,000

Granted

®Y

During the year

AR

Exercised

fi

(180,000)

Further details of the Company’s outstanding share options are

given in note 32 to the financial statements.

WG AR AT B 1 i JB it

REF-REZA=Z+—H o BREFRZ AN
e T 8 452 7 T A A ) JBe Ay Y 0 AR AT

JBBE RS ST

At

31 March
2010
BB
Sy ES

Lapsed
V4

844,800

- 8,448,000

- 8,448,000

- 8,448,000

- 844,800

- 7,500,000

- 360,000

Exercise period
(dfmfy)

i i

(H/A/E)

03/09/07 - 02/09/12
03/09/07 - 02/09/12
03/09/07 - 02/09/12
03/09/07 - 02/09/12

03/09/07 - 02/09/12

02/12/08 - 01/12/13

07/06/07 - 06/06/12

Exercise
price
(HKS)
iR g
(H#75)
0.400
0.400
0.400
0.400

0.400

0.790

0.165

A7 B A2 T WG RAT O B HE 2 — B RE A > R

Vo 5 S A B 32
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2010, according to the register of interests
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, and so
far as was known to the directors or chief executives of the
Company, the following persons, other than directors or chief
executives of the Company, had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares which would require to be
disclosed by the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of the Company.

Long positions:

A :

BB 3R B Il A B A B A W U
2t B R

REF-FHE=ZH=4—H > RIRGER L&
W) 5533640k Z B AE A 2 W] 76 4 47 1 HE 25 8 i
TR L 8k > LA A ) AT o] 2 R0 e A7 BN BB
A BRA A F R S B AT BN B DL - R
N B T A s R J A A R 2 % AT T ZEAR B¢
il 27 o ) 65 R 9)) SR X VR 5 2 B S 3 43 ¥ 1h) AR 4y
R B > o o A T 5 90k WA B A AT
oy S e A (BRE A 7 — VD% DT 7R AR 2 B B IR
K LBIZHIRER])

Number of Percentage of the
ordinary shares Company’s issued
Capacity and held share capital
Name of shareholder Notes nature of interest P ¥ 45 3% B A2 v AT
B RES R M it B By B b 2% 1 BT Bepr ¥ H Ay e
Winhale Limited (“Winhale”) (a) Beneficial owner 838,760,400 56.39%
HambEA A
Braveway Limited (b) As a trustee 838,760,400 56.39%
fERfEREN
HSBC International Trustee Limited (c) As a trustee 838,760,400 56.39%
TERAETEAN
Dragon Gate Development Limited (d) Beneficial owner 166,742,000 11.21%
HamBA A
Chiu Koon Ming Andy (d) Through a controlled 166,742,000 11.21%
8 52 8 corporation
75 38 % e i 3 8
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)
Notes:

(a) The above interest in the name of Winhale was also disclosed as interest
of Mr. Ngai under the heading “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above. In addition, these shares are
ultimately beneficially owned by Xyston Trust.

(b)  Winhale is wholly-owned by the Braveway Unit Trust. Braveway
Limited being the trustee of the Braveway Unit Trust is deemed to be
interested in the shares in the Company held by Winhale.

(c) HSBC International Trustee Limited being the trustee of Xyston Trust
is deemed to be interested in the shares in the Company held by Xyston
Trust.

(d)  100% interests in Dragon Gate Development Limited are controlled by
Mr. Chiu Koon Ming Andy.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section headed “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares

of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for

reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ngai Chun Hung

Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Y8 3 A% S A o

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=® K

To the shareholders of

Vantage International (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Vantage
International (Holdings) Limited set out on pages 53 to 152,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Y8 3 A% S A

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

28 June 2010
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
B A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HaZmBAR
Year ended 31 March 2010 #FE - E—FE=H="F—HILFEE
2010 2009
R R ZERNA
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hf it TF# F#T
REVENUE A 5 2,054,793 2,152,685
Contract costs i # AR (1,901,867) (2,024,350)
Property expenses LES 5 (894) (1,561)
Gross profit =yl 152,032 126,774
Other income and gains Al e A % ik 2 5 129,601 16,387
Administrative expenses [Enid:- b3 (45,897) (53,250)
Other expenses Ho A B 2 (14) (160,405)
Finance costs W E &N 7 (7,319) (18,808)
Share of profits and losses of JRE A 3 [ 428 o] 8 ¥ )
jointly-controlled entities I 18 20 152 106
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX B BE G B A, Ol 1) 6 228,555 (89,196)
Income tax (expense)/credit BIH () s 10 (36,386) 9,947
PROFIT/(LOSS) AND TOTAL ERERA O ) K
COMPREHENSIVE 2N O 1) B
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 192,169 (79,249)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive BN R HEA A REAS
income/(loss) attributable to WAl (1) X
owners of the parent A (ER) #% 11 192,169 (79,249)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE B vl AR A
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY HEAY 45 Be 2 A, Ol 38)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 13
(HK cents) (Al
Basic BeAR 12.9 (5.3)
Diluted i 12.8 (5.3)

A7 TR T 2 F A A S AR M 12 P9 B o

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial
statements.
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

"o Kk A B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R WA R DL R
31 March 2010 W =F—FF=H="1—H
2010 2009
e S22 ZREE
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
W T T8
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik U ) %
Property, plant and equipment LYE W Y ] 14 150,330 17,136
Properties held for development FEEERZME 15 - 127,000
Investment properties E =g/ S 16 692,226 471,892
Prepaid land lease payments FEAT £ R A A 17 108,955 111,970
Interests in jointly-controlled entities 7 3 [w] 42 ] Y i BE AR 20 258 106
Total non-current assets IR A 951,769 728,104
CURRENT ASSETS i W) %
Gross amount due from customers BEREFZ AR
for contract work TR 21 31,974 142,190
Properties under development BRP Yk 22 - 30,338
Properties held for sale HEEREZWE 23 81,116 40,833
Accounts receivable JRE WA B 3k 24 278,156 208,133
Prepayments, deposits and FAKIE - R
other receivables il JE Wik 25 60,396 46,881
Amounts due from jointly-controlled A Wi A ] 42 o) B K O
entities 20 8,598 90
Tax recoverable ] 0 e At I 447 629
Pledged deposits SR K 26 1,075 5,512
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBESEY 26 209,022 206,591
Total current assets B A 670,784 681,197
CURRENT LIABILITIES i B 1 4%
Accounts payable JRE A B sk 27 301,270 238,486
Gross amount due to customers for B EFZ a5
contract work TRk 48 21 84,171 140,657
Tax payable JE A A I 6,354 4,374
Other payables and accruals At JE A 2k X FE IR 2 H 28 12,985 13,476
Interest-bearing bank loans AR RAT 29 178,104 201,667
Total current liabilities it B £ AR 582,884 598,660
NET CURRENT ASSETS i B 2 87,900 82,537
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT Y A A0 00 O O ) £
LIABILITIES 1,039,669 810,641
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o VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

#wOoH OB K A R OA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B 55K DL

31 March 2010 W -FE—FFE=H=+—H

2010 2009
R R ZERNA
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hf it TF# F#T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES Ik ¥ By £ 4
Interest-bearing bank loans A ESRAT B 29 398,773 381,483
Deferred tax liabilities 4 Bl JE A A 30 30,632 11,093
Total non-current liabilities e B A A AR 429,405 392,576
Net assets & ETE 610,264 418,065
EQUITY i 2%
Equity attributable to owners B A B H
of the parent M A B 2
Issued capital OB 4T R A 31 37,187 37,182
Reserves it it 33(a) 573,077 380,883
Total equity HHRE 2R 610,264 418,065
Ngai Chun Hung Yau Kwok Fai
Director Director
B4 e i B B
HH HH
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o VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
&

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B e i 5% W e

Year ended 31 March 2010 # £ = F—FFE=H="1—HIFFEE

Share Share
Issued  premium Contributed  Goodwill option  Retained Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve profits equity
3% £0) % £ A W i I 34 42
JBe A e B #hk i it Hi Al st
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
F#r FHTL FHT FH#T F#r F#r F#r
At 1 April 2008 REZFZNENA—H 37,132 167,404 11,421 (5,035) 4,401 279,194 494,517
Total comprehensive loss RAE T 2 T TR AR
for the year - - - - - (79,249) (79,249)
Issue of shares (note 31) BT (HiEs1) 50 749 - - - - 799
Transfer upon exercise of T A T 1 o 4
share options (note 31) (Hit31) - 301 - - (301) - -
Equity-settled share option DA 25 45 0 A
arrangements (note 32) (Hit32) - - - - 1,998 - 1,998
At 31 March 2009 and REZFAE=ZAZ4—H
at 1 April 2009 R ZRZNENA—H 37,182 168,454* 11,421 (5,035)% 6,008%  199,945% 418,065
Total comprehensive income XA Ji 2 i g A B4
for the year - - - - - 192,169 192,169
Issue of shares (note 31) BT (WiEs1) 5 15 - - - - 30
Transfer upon exercise of T A O T 1 4
share options (note 31) (Hfit31) - 8 - - (8) - -
At 31 March 2010 RE-F-FEZH=+—H 37,187 168,487* 11,421% (5,035)* 6,090%  392,114% 610,264
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * WEREHIEH BB R G BERNERZ AR

HK$573,077,000 (2009: HK$380,883,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

#5573,077,000% 76 (= & F JL4E : 380,883,000
JG) e
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o VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
#

"o &k A B

N

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A Bl R

Year ended 31 March 2010 #FE - E—FE=H="F—HILFEE

2010 2009
e S22 ZERRLE
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
Mt T F#x
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBGZBEHR
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BEBini e Al () 228,555 (89,196)
Adjustments for: WA IE B 1 R
Finance costs I %5 # 7 7,319 18,808
Share of profits and losses of JRE Ay 3 [+ $5¢ ) 8 i )
jointly-controlled entities KB 20 (152) (106)
Interest income )& WA 5 (5,966) (9,810)
Depreciation e 6 4,403 3,875
Amortisation of prepaid land TEAY - Hu A A 3k
lease payments P 4 3 6 3,015 3,015
Impairment of properties held MEEERZ
for development Wy SEWAE 6 - 34,920
Write-down of property held for HAEENEZYE
sale to net realisable value I 2 W) 5 B 6 - 4,000
Loss on disposal of items of property, WY - S R
plant and equipment HEZER 6 14 177
Gain on disposal of investment B 5 ) 3 A A
properties 5 - (268)
Changes in fair value of investment BEWEATVHE
properties, net A A 6 (117,798) 121,476
Changes in fair value of derivative 15 4 b T2 A Sl 58 0
financial instruments 6 - 920
Equity-settled share option expense DR 25 f5 S 0 J6 5 WE 2 32 - 1,998
119,390 89,809
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from  J& W 3 [&] 452 il
jointly-controlled entities PER K IE (4 m) WA (8,508) 1,740
Decrease in gross amount due from W& P Z & # TR
customers for contract work WA 110,216 125,554
Increase in properties under development — § J& H 4y 2£ 3% (9,908) (8,806)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable JE W HE 3k (39 m) /WA (70,023) 31,684
Increase in prepayments, deposits and AT R ~ S R H Al
other receivables JRE Wz 3k 4 (13,515) (9,989)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable HE AsH R Ak 38 (kA 62,784 (12,912)
Increase/(decrease) in gross amount due ~ HEAT & F 2 & 4 T
to customers for contract work gaxEw (R A) (56,486) 71,322
Increase/(decrease) in other payables I Al A R B AR B H
and accruals ¥, () (491) 2,750
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o VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BOBeiER
Year ended 31 March 2010 #FE_-F—FF=H="1—HI-F¥
2010 2009
e S £.3 ZERNAE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it T # T¥#x
Cash generated from operations RKAEMEZBL 4 133,459 291,152
Interest received [ s 5,966 9,810
Interest paid AT F & (9,356) (19,041)
Hong Kong profits tax paid AT B A G B (14,685) (21,403)
Net cash flows from REkEBEEZ
operating activities Bl & E 115,384 260,518
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BHEHZICRER
ACTIVITIES
Additions of items of property, W - B K
plant and equipment EMIEHE 14 (4,917) (3,628)
Additions to investment properties B Wy 3 (101,487) (1,764)
Increase in properties held for Pl R g R Z i 2E B
development (4,768) (46,420)
Proceeds from disposal of items of B - eSS Rt
property, plant and equipment Z Rk IE 25 405
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREWEZ AR
properties - 21,768
Decrease in pledged deposits FEA A K WA 3,336 1,627
Net cash flows used in investing REEBHAZHRE
activities i eE | (107,811) (28,012)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEXEHZIER R
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of share options i JBE HHE 88 AT 088 1 BT A5k JE 31 30 799
New bank loans B SRAT B 388,819 286,144
Repayment of bank loans 1R SR AT K (391,610) (395,467)
Net cash flows used in financing A SE AL 2 B4
activities it A (2,761) (108,524)
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
#mom o K A R A #

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BT Bl MR

Year ended 31 March 2010 #FE _-E—FE=H="F—HILFEWE

2010 2009
e S £.3 ZERNAE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it T # T T¥#x
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BeRBE%MEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS 34 m 5 4,812 123,982
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning W] Z Bl 4 R B &S EHD
of year 205,285 81,303
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HERZBERBEEMY
AT END OF YEAR 210,097 205,285
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B & RBESMHME KR
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Vg
Cash and bank balances B4 M SRAT S5 % 26 164,860 114,136
Non-pledged time deposits with original [ B WE 5 A B B H A%
maturity of less than three months =M/ A Z i
when acquired E W E K 26 44,162 92,455
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in fR A B IR DLFRE P P At ¥y
the consolidated statement of BE R BE&SHD
financial position 209,022 206,591
Time deposits with original maturity of less TWHEHHAE % $R1T 7 5 K
than three months when acquired, I B R A 2 B AR
pledged as security against bank =108 Z 2 W
overdraft facilities 26 1,075 2,176
Bank overdrafts RITIE L 29 - (3,482)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in A BLARER NI RN
the consolidated statement of cash flows Bi4 N Bl & ZEW 210,097 205,285
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
#moH o K A R A #
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
LR PINY B

31 March 2010 W -FE—FFE=H=+—H

2010 2009
R R ZERNA
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hf it TF# F#T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik G By ¥ A
Interests in subsidiaries A B RS A W) 2 M 2 19 280,568 279,689
CURRENT ASSETS it ) ¥
Tax recoverable ] W [v] Bt I 387 545
Cash and cash equivalents B& R B &5 HD 26 493 426
Total current assets i B B A 880 971
CURRENT LIABILITIES i ) 1
Other payables FE Atk JE £ 3% 28 208 210
NET CURRENT ASSETS R ) 9 7 VR 672 761
Net assets & 7 A 281,240 280,450
EQUITY HE A
Issued capital BT A 31 37,187 37,182
Reserves Tkt 33(b) 244,053 243,268
Total equity HHRE 2R 281,240 280,450
Ngai Chun Hung Yau Kwok Fai
Director Director
240 i B B
HH HH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA5 0 4 B ik

31 March 2010
1.

ZE—FEFE=H=1—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Vantage International (Holdings) Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at
No. 155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following

principal activities:

e a wide range of construction, civil engineering,
maintenance and other contract works in public and
private sectors in Hong Kong

e property investment and development

The Company is a public company with its shares listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Winhale
Ltd. (“Winhale”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

# Ok A B & #

A YR
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S A BRA ] o AR R Z FE A R AL
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
#mom OB K A R A #

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IO 0 R B
31 March 2010 ZF—FE=H=4+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 FRILHE (7))

62

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2010. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intercompany transactions and balances within the

Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRS:s for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Amendments to HKERS 1 First-time
Adoption of HKFRSs and

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements — Cost of an

Amendments

Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

HKFRS 2 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment - Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

HKFRS 7 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Improving

Disclosures about Financial Instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

R A

o TR 5 A A A A ) R L T 8 W) (A
MAETALR]) BRE_RZ-FE=A=1+—
H kAR 2 FA B A o B O W) SR 40 il vl
W B 3 R A 4R A 2 ARV L0 G2
AR > ARG AR » BLEA B
REAS Ik F 2 0k o ARSI P9 2 B T2 A 28
Sy B T ON > B S DA B AR S B 85 X s
BB AGBR TR A A IR H R 8 o

2.2 1l BOOR B 5% 2 52 )

A5 T A SR A A R T B R AR R KER DL R
ST ) 5T ARG BT A A o T B o R R o

T AR 15 B R 158
BRI (BT ARAEEYERT
PR BT it

BTG RE B H

oI : I a
A KT

BELARENHE
MG RRAR (BT)  AWMB R Y
Bty 2 AR50

BT : BT ARt 4
MG RIEAETS (BT) AWM R R
[£BTA : HFIH
Bl : AEFHEMIA
it/7 3
7B O Y I S0 5 HERW
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
#mom o K A R A #

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA5 0 4 B ik

31 March 2010 —E—FE=H=4+—H

Measurement — Embedded Derivatives

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.2 Frah WOR B % 2 2 8) (41)
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 8 Amendment*  Amendment to HKFRS 8 Operating T I T e ) Sha W I T e B S0
Segments — Disclosure of information (fB3T) = [BERWIWET  HH
about segment assets (early adopted) HEEEHI R
(BEHiSR )
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements TSGR aE 0t (BIER)  WEHENAR
HKAS 18 Amendment*  Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18 BWEHEREI8S (B3)  FEaEaB s A/
Revenue — Determining whether an WG
entity is acting as a principal or HERR
an agent VEEIY: 54
ARG RF
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs FHGTHEAEDY (BET) HHEH
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial B3 R Bkt R 2
Amendments Instruments: Presentation and T o At 46198 (183 IR : AR
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial TR B A
Statements — Puttable Financial HENIIHI MR -
Instruments and Obligations Arising on g £l T AR BRI
Liquidation &%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 B (A ERENRE B (RRE R R
HKAS 39 Amendments  Reassessment of Embedded ZHE)RBRORRAE ZEE)RREOR A
Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial AR08 (1B3]) W TRAMEFTH R
Instruments: Recognition and Tl ot 2 53058

[£HIA : @2
WET : A% TR

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes B (AGHEERENRE  ZALHTY
ZAf) RRELE
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Tk (AR EERRNRE  FHREFNENGE
Real Estate ZHE) RREIH
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign B (MG ERENRE  HESEEEFFREN
Operation ZEE)RBE0H W
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers B (AGHEERRENGRE AEFBBEE
(adopted from 1 July 2009) ZE®) RBRI8H (HZZFNE
LA HRM)
Improvements to HKFRSs ~ Amendments to a number of HKFRSs WERW R A [T £ A i B S
(October 2008) ** (ZERFNETR) =
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AN

ok

Oth

D DISCLOSURES (continued)

Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May 2009)
The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs issued in
October 2008 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations — Plan to sell the
controlling interest in a subsidiary, which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

er than as further explained below regarding the

impact of HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (Revised), the adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant

financial effect on these financial statements and there

have been no significant changes to the accounting

policies applied in these financial statements.

The

principal effects of adopting HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1

(Revised) are as follows:

(a)

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting, specifies how an entity should report
information about its operating segments, based on
information about the components of the entity that
is available to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of allocating resources to the segments
and assessing their performance. The standard also
requires the disclosure of information about the
products and services provided by the segments, the
geographical areas in which the Group operates,
and revenue from the Group’s major customers. The
adoption of HKFRS 8 did not have any effect on the
financial position or results of the Group. However,
it has resulted in changes in the identification and
presentation of reportable segments. These revised
disclosures, including the related revised comparative

information, are shown in note 4 below.

VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2010 =F—FFE=H=1—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

2.2 Frah WOR K % 2 2 8) (4)

(a)

(b)

HKEFRS 8 Operating Segments (continued)

The Group has early adopted in these financial
statements the Amendment to HKFRS 8 issued in
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 which clarifies that
segment assets need only to be reported when those
assets are included in measures that are used by the

chief operating decision maker.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the
presentation and disclosures of financial statements.
The revised standard separates owner and non-
owner changes in equity. The statement of changes
in equity includes only details of transactions with
owners, with all non-owner changes in equity
presented as a single line. In addition, this standard
introduces the statement of comprehensive income,
with all items of income and expense recognised
in profit or loss, together with all other items of
recognised income and expense recognised directly
in equity, either in one single statement, or in two
linked statements. The Group has elected to present
one single statement.

(a)

(b)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs 2.3 OB /i {5 N5 A 4 20 iy 75 ¥ B 5 3
b ]|
7R 45 ) 7 7 B B S R K R BR R 0 LB A
AL 5 2 280 387 ) 3T A A6 A 3T 1 7 A

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRS:s, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

66

in these financial statements. YRR o

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong T S 5 e B 5 5% BRRA T BHRE
Financial Reporting Standards ! (BAETT) )

HKFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to HKERS 1 First-time T v T T o e U 56 1% Ul MBS A5
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial () v sl e s
Reporting Standards — Limited PR - B RRA
Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7 FHHE BB
Disclosures for First-time Adopters * FTRIEBRUFEEHA

HRE4

HKFRS 1 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time T v T T o e U 56 1 MBI
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial () v s raiine s
Reporting Standards — Additional EHIMERT « B R IH
Exemptions for First-time Adopters * B A

HKFRS 2 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based T I 5 e B B2 % TR B ek R AU
Payment — Group Cash-settled Share- (fB3T) W17 BIEE I3 0
based Payment Transactions ? il EERY B S

VRI BRI AR
HKERS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations ' T I B A3 %E LELH
(&e3T)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments © T S 5 5 e B S0 5% SRS

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures ® B a4 (RS BB iE

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial TGRS (BETT)  HARERHFHE
Statements *

HKAS 32 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial BEET R (BT) BRI 2
Instruments: Presentation — IH T
Classification of Right Issues ® HRZAH

HKAS 39 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial B RAE0% (B3T) B EHENA0R 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Amendments

Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items !

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum

Funding Requirement 3

e (B 2 D e
ZAf) RBA4E (BT
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31 March 2010 ZF—FE=H=4+—H
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs 2.3

(continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Ouwners !

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments *

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current

included in Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Improvements Operations — Plan to sell the controlling
to HKFRS:s issued interest in a subsidiary !
in October 2008

HK Interpretation 4 Leases — Determination of the Length of
(Revised in Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong
December 2009) Land Leases *

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 which sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with a
view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording.
The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-Int
9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 while the amendments
to HKFRS 5, HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36
and HKAS 39 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2010 although there are separate
transitional provisions for each standard or interpretation.
The HKICPA has further issued Improvements to HKFRSs
2010 in May 2010 which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011, as

appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs 2.3 T /i fH g R 2 20 75 U6 W %5 3 3

68

(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application, but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs will have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as

to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of comprehensive income to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the

other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on
which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the
joint venture agreement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)
Joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise

significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence

over, the joint venture.

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that
is subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the

economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entities are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses. The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves
of jointly-controlled entities is included in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income, respectively.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 :E@ral s ()

POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities (continued)

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the jointly-controlled entities, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset

transferred.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the date
of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or
after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as an asset,
initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less any

accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or

groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 :E@ral s ()

POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or
after 1 January 2005 (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in
this circumstance is measured based on the relative values
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA’s Statement
of Standard Accounting Practice 30 “Business
Combinations” (“SSAP 30”) in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against consolidated reserves
in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3,
such goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated
reserves and is not recognised in profit or loss of the
statement of comprehensive income when all or part of
the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or
when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates

becomes impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than properties under development, properties held for
sale, construction contract assets, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, investment properties and goodwill),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for

the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss of
the statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss of the
statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (ii) has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)

or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than hotel
under construction, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss of the statement
of comprehensive income in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:

Buildings Opver the shorter of the
remaining term of the
land lease and 40 years

Leasehold improvements Opver the shorter of the

lease term and 20%
Machinery and equipment ~ 20% to 24%
Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 24%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 24% to 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each

part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss of the
statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)
Hotel under construction is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Hotel under construction is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the

reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss of the
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which

they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss of the
statement of comprehensive income in the year of the
retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)
Properties held for development
Properties held for development are stated at cost less
impairment losses. These properties are reclassified
as properties under development or hotel under
construction, as appropriate, when development

commences.

Properties under development

Properties under development for re-sale are included
under current assets and are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost comprises acquisition costs,
construction costs, interest and other direct attributable
costs. Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the estimated selling price less estimated total cost of the
development and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale of the properties.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business

less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of
a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases are included
in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs
of such leases are charged to profit or loss of the statement
of comprehensive income so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to profit or
loss of the statement of comprehensive income on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to profit or loss of the statement of
comprehensive income on the straight-line basis over the

lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as loans and receivables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 :Efrul s ()

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank
balances, accounts and other receivables, deposits and

amounts due from jointly-controlled entities.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends

on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance income in profit or
loss of the statement of comprehensive income. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or
loss of the statement of comprehensive income in other
operating expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 T Efral 8o mE (4)

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could

be required to repay.

# 1k e S 4 1
BT UL B > Gl A (S (7 )
B 2 M) — A s — AL e b Y —
A ) o A Ak R

o TR AW B G B A RE A LR 5 B

o AR [ L LA A MO B i R
RER > SOMLER [ FE A% | 8k > A4 1 58
= A T A RS DU T A
T R B G I A S 5 I () AR
VA RS e B I o R
(b) 7% 45 0 S 40 ol 58 D B s 48 KR
A7 L i T L o A

JU A 5 Il 8 08 S W B 4 U R
A B T ALY 57 RS & B > fEL I 8 e AR B
7 A K VR A L i > L S B el
VEmIME > IHE ET DAL EFFE2 T %
B MR RE A P DLRERS o TRV > A
A5 0 15 e R I o o Y R B
5 S A 4R [ DR B A ) 2 o i i
B o

MRS 2 7R EE > MikE
A Je e T S A R s O A AR AR e
WA Z AR st A o



‘ VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

#moH % Kk A W

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA5 0 4 B ik

31 March 2010 ZFE—FF=H=1+—H
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to
be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the

current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
statement of comprehensive income. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has

been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to

profit or loss of the statement of comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 ZE @l s ()

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of

its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and
other payables and interest-bearing bank loans.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss of the statement of comprehensive income when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss of the statement of comprehensive

income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 T Efral 8o mE (4)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised

less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss of the

statement of comprehensive income.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as
interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risk. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is

negative.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss of the
statement of comprehensive income.

Construction, renovation and other contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims
and incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise
direct materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed

contract overheads.

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the percentage of certified value of work performed to

date to the total contract sum of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are

anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the
surplus is treated as an amount due from customers for

contract work.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as an amount due to customers for

contract work.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part

of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as

to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

e  where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and interests in
joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 T Efral 8o mE (4)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income over the periods necessary to match
the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is

intended to compensate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from construction, renovation and other contracts,
based on the percentage of completion basis, as
further explained in the accounting policy for
“Construction, renovation and other contracts”

above;

(b) from work orders of contracts for alterations,
additions, repairs and maintenance, based on the
value of individual work orders certified by relevant
employers;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note

32 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit
or loss of the statement of comprehensive income for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance

and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value
of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 ZE @l s ()

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled

transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period
is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of the reporting period for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 T Efral 8o mE (4)

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss of the statement
of comprehensive income as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORSQO”) retirement benefits scheme for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the ORSO
scheme. This scheme operates in a way similar to the
MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the
scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employee
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the relevant amount
of forfeited employer’s contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)
Dividends
Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. All differences are taken to profit or loss of the
statement of comprehensive income. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value

was determined.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Construction, renovation and other contracts

As further explained in note 2.4 to the financial
statements, revenue and profit recognition on contract
work is dependent on the estimation of the total
outcome of the construction contract, as well as the work
performed to date. Based on the Group’s past experience
and the nature of the contract activities undertaken by
the Group, the Group makes estimates of the point at
which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced such
that the costs to complete and the revenue can be reliably
estimated. As a result, until this point is reached, the
amount due from customers for contract work as disclosed
in note 21 to the financial statements will not include
profit which the Group may eventually realise from the
work performed to date. In addition, actual outcomes
in terms of total contract costs and/or revenue may be
higher or lower than those estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which would affect the revenue and

profit recognised in future years.

Significant assumptions are required to estimate the
total contract costs and the recoverable variation works
that will affect whether any provision is required for
foreseeable losses. The estimates are made based on past

experience and knowledge of the project management.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such
as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay

in payments.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the
amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated
based on historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount of the
Group’s loans and receivables at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 38.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those cash flows.

Estimation of investment properties

As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements,
investment properties including completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction
are revalued at the end of the reporting period on
market value, existing use basis or on residual basis
by independent professionally qualified valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions and
estimates, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual outcomes. In making
the judgement, information from current prices in an
active market for similar properties is considered and
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions

existing at the end of the reporting period are used.
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4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with
effect from 1 April 2009. HKFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group whose operating results
are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating
decision maker, who comprises the Executive Directors
of the Company, in order to allocate resources to the
segments and to assess their performance. In contrast, for
the previous years, HKAS 14 Segment Reporting required
that segment information be analysed according to the
nature of operations of the Group’s business units and the
risks and returns of the products and services offered by
each business unit. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted
in a change of the identification of the Group’s reportable
segments from five business segments to two operating
segments which are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker as follows:

(a) the contract works segment engages in contract
works as a main contractor or subcontractor,
primarily in respect of building construction,
renovation, repairs and maintenance and civil

engineering works; and

(b) the property investment and development segment
engages in investment in retail, commercial and
residential premises for their rental income potential

and the development of properties.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of adjusted
profit or loss before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit or
loss before tax except that interest income, finance costs,
share of profits and losses of jointly-controlled entities as
well as head office and corporate expenses are excluded

from such measurement.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. i ER (H)

98

Group
A4
Property investment
Contract works and development Elimination Consolidated
FHIH WERERBER i i
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
CRRE | CRRE | CF-%F | ZRRIAE | 2% | ZRTAE | SF-%% | D3R
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
i T#L T#x I T#r T Fi#L T#I
Segment revenue: AR :
Sales to external customers HETHER 2,038,850 | 2140998 15,943 11,687 - - | 2054793 | 215268
Intersegment sales A E 3,830 - - - (3,830) - - -
Total Gk 2,042,680 | 2,140998 15,943 11,687 (3,830) - 2054793 | 152,68
Segment results i Ed 136,984 16648 | 131,359 | (151,739 - - 268343 (35,091)
Interest and unallocated HERKARZ
income and gains IV 11,803 16,118
Unallocated expenses FABZHE (44,424) (51,521)
Finance costs HHE (7,319) (18,808)
Share of profits and losses WEfh Al 2
of jointly-controlled entities il e 152 106
Profit/(loss) before tax BB/ (BH) 228,555 (89,196)
Income tax (expense)/credit FreB GEtt) /s (36,386) 9,947
Profi/(Loss) for the year ERERH/ (BR) 192,169 (79,49)
Other segment information: EARER :
Depreciation on ARG EZ T
unallocated assets 4,403 3875
Amortisation of prepaid it LM EL
land lease payments - AR -
unallocated R 3,015 3,015
Reversal of impairment HE e e
of accounts receivable - (488) - - - - - (488)
Impairment of properties HHEREZ
held for development WERE - - - 34920 - - - 34920
Write-down of property i
held for sale to net WER
realisable value EMEBFH - - - 4,000 - - - 4,000
(Gain)/loss on changes in RENEATHER
fair value of investment (k) /R
properties, net #H - - (117,798) 121,476 - - (117,798) 121,476
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. IEF (5)
Geographical information Hb I 25
(a) Rewvenue from external customers (a) FKHEIFKEFBIRA
All of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers A G A WA 7 8 DA o 2 KL b iy
based in Hong Kong. %P o
(b) Non-current assets (b) T H) &
2010 2009
e S £.3 ZRFEILE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T # T F
Hong Kong HH 949,153 725,122
Mainland China TN S 2,616 2,382
951,769 728,104
The non-current asset information above is based e U Y A ORE DA A L Ay AR
on the location of assets and excludes deferred tax B 5 b A £ 45 08 1 BEIE B o
assets.
Information about major customers TEEFER
Revenue of approximately HK$1,626,594,000 (2009: AAEE N > #11,626,594,000% 78 (R JU
HK$1,602,595,000) for the year was generated by the 4 1 1,602,595,0009 70) Z WA T & #) LR
contract works segment from transactions with a single Sy iR BB — R POEAT R By AR AR o A W I
customer. Government bureaux and departments of the BURT & BUNBUR R KBS R B — % 5 - 1
HKSAR Government are considered a single customer. 8 FL il BE— A ARk %% 5 4 A 4 T U A 10% 8% DA
No other single external customers accounted for 10% or o

more of the Group’s revenue.

Information about products and services e R R
2010 2009
TR —RAR ZRFILE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T # Fi#or
Revenue from external customers: RBEIREFZHA :
Contract works for building construction BEEEAA TR 472,539 394,130
Contract works for renovation, W ~ M AR
repairs and maintenance BHTE 1,268,570 1,486,280
Contract works for civil engineering works T AR TG4 T 297,741 260,588
Property gross rental income LIE i RN 15,943 11,687
2,054,793 2,152,685
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2010 Z&F—FHE=H=1,—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents

B OK A B

the appropriate proportion of contract revenue from
construction, renovation and other contracts, and
the gross rental income received and receivable from

properties during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

A

BOA ~ J0 Al BOA B e 4

W\ IR B A S5 10 10 88 S 98 73 9 46 I 70
M TR B A TR A A e A M 2 A
IO > 40 3 1 T 00 B MWL 4 Wi A 8
%A o

WA~ oAl e AR e 2 Z A3 AT R

follows:
Group
A 4R 1
2010 2009
E R —EFNE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
At it T # T¥#x
Revenue WA
Contract revenue HHRIWA 2,038,850 2,140,998
Property gross rental income LE i A YN K 15,943 11,687
2,054,793 2,152,685
Other income and gains NN PN €
Interest income )& WA 5,966 9,810
Net interest received on derivative T AT A 4 il T R i O
financial instruments — transactions SIS RE R R Y ey
not qualifying as hedges EHBMENR S 504 1,821
Management income received and A6 — 3 [ 442 ) L 78
receivable from a jointly-controlled entity — WHZ & B Y A 37 3,295 3,030
Gain on changes in fair value of LS og B PR Ek )]
investment properties, net Wz > B 16 117,798 -
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYFENKE - 268
Sundry income, net MeEUL » 3 2,038 1,458
129,601 16,387
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6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after

6. BRBLHIRA ()
ARG 2 BT B Ol BB Gt

charging/(crediting): AN) T &I -
Group
A4
2010 2009
e Sk 2.8 ZERNAE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt F##x F#x
Depreciation Yr#g 14 4,403 3,875
Auditors’ remuneration A% 85 B T 4 1,680 1,600
Employee benefits expense (exclusive 1 B & F) BA 32
of directors’ remuneration — note 8): (AEFEHEEME
— M 7ES)
Wages and salaries TERF & 72,741 78,286
Pension scheme contributions PR Nt W R
(defined contribution schemes) (A2 gk wh#) 2,214 2,451
74,955 80,737
Minimum lease payments under IR RIKZRE
operating leases: FER A :
Land and buildings 4 3 Je g 6,763 2,867
Equipment B 7,604 9,056
14,367 11,923
(Gain)/loss on changes in fair value of BEWHEA T EMEE T
investment properties, net¥® (W) 18 - WwE 16 (117,798) 121,476
Impairment of properties held for T 1 B R 2 4 3 A
development* - 34920
Write-down of property held for R B Z i SR E
sale to net realisable value* 2 W) 5 B - 4,000
Loss on disposal of items of property, B - AN KA
plant and equipment* JHHZER 14 177
Reversal of impairment of accounts JFRE WAL B T UL [T 43
receivable* - (488)
Reversal of bad debt written off B 7S i WA el i 8
as uncollectible* 5 R 48 [ - (600)
Amortisation of prepaid land FEAT 4 AL A sk
lease payments B 3 8 17 3,015 3,015
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative — fi7 4 & @k T. A A P14
financial instruments — transactions 2 iE
not qualifying as hedges* — AR BB
22 5y * - 920
Government subsidies** B B Wy (525) (437)
Net rental income A WA TR (15,049) (10,126)
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6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. l#iﬁiﬁ?}ﬁt‘ﬂ /Ol ) (81)

These items are included in “Other income and gains” or “Other PETEH O N A 2 A RN Z
expenses”, as appropriate, on the face of the consolidated [FC AW A B 2s 1 gl [ Ho AP 2 ] -
statement of comprehensive income.

##  Subsidies have been received from the Hong Kong Vocational ) B SR 2E 2 TR A AR AR T 5 A A v
Training Council, an institution established by the Hong Kong Wik 3 90 56 R (o6 o [ JBO T Bk o 2 B ) 2
SAR Government, for providing on-the-job training for graduate BBy o H AT B %SG B 2 R AT
engineers. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies sk R A o

relating to these subsidies.

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. WHEN
Group
ARBEH
2010 2009
R R ZERLA
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts SRATERMIBE X ZF B 9,356 19,041
Less: Interest capitalised W CEARILF B (2,037) (233)
7,319 18,808
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. WML
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant 8 7 v T 5 58 5 P A PR A ) 3 bl LR
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The (T Bt B R 1) B 7 5 v W) Ak 451 58 16 1k 9k 5%
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing ZAREEERMEFEWT

Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
b Y|
2010 2009
- S £.3 ZERNAE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T # Fi#or
Fees 4 540 540
Other emoluments: oAt 7 -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fa o R EYA 2R 8,221 8,242
Discretionary performance related bonuses 52 3% BUAH B Z Y 15 T 4T 8,667 13,025
Equity-settled share option expense* VI RE 25 45 S50 100 Ji 1 W e - 1,998
Pension scheme contributions R N RS e
(defined contribution schemes) (e itk wt i) 104 104
16,992 23,369
17,532 23,909
* This represents the estimated fair value of the options granted to * BB AR A R R ARAE JIE A0 B 7 S A 4 T 1y
certain directors, in respect of their services to the Group, under R o AL IEAS A A B R ] 4 e Rtk
the share option scheme of the Company during the year. The W W BRE Z A5 A LA o a5 S i
fair value was measured as at the date of grant in accordance with BN A T e A 4 A B 2 4Pk R B TR
the Group’s accounting policy for “Employee benefits — share- HEA—DL By 2 Re s ik 22 5 1 2 &5t
based payment transactions”, as disclosed in note 2.4. Details of B > W T HEHE o i3 Sl B RE RO RE
these options, including the principal terms and number of options (B3GR S 3% T I R i i) o AR
granted are set out in note 32. W HmEMRE32 -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. WY 4 ()
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) Mr gy e
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors AR BN ST T R S R AT HE S A 4
during the year were as follows: mE
2010 2009
R R ZREFIE
Fees Fees
e 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x F#x
Professor Ko Jan Ming B B 180 180
The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP W R B (MBS A TFAL) 180 180
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung Eugene W e A 180 180
540 540
There were no other emoluments payable to the AR FEPY > N J A 8 S J AT R
independent non-executive directors during the year ZHALI A (BRI - ) -
(2009: Nil).
(b) Executive and non-executive directors (b) AT R IEPAT
2010
R R
Salaries, Discretionary
allowances  performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
in kind bonuses benefits  contributions  remuneration
Y 3
B HW BURBUNR i1 D I Bk4
REWAE WL Al b gk B 2

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt T#L Tt T#L

Executive directors: WiiEd:
M. Ngai Chun Hung AR 3,201 4,000 - 12 7,213
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai e R 1 2,486 2,500 - 12 4,998
M. Li Chi Pong R LA 1,284 667 - 59 2,010
Mr. Mak Hon Kuen Peter HEME RS 600 - - 12 612
7,571 7,167 - 95 14,833
Non-executive director: EI i
Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph T W) e A 650 1,500 - 9 2,159
8,221 8,667 - 104 16,992
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive and non-executive directors (continued)

8. WM ()

(b) AT B AT HE A ()

2009
“EREIE
Salaries,  Discretionary
allowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
in kind bonuses benefits  contributions  remuneration
DABE 35 4551
e wu EEHME 1 8 e Bika
REWHZ  ZWEEL Al at w4
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#r FHTL T FHT F#r
Executive directors: Wi
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung B 2,895 7,000 - 12 9,907
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai it R e 2,486 3,000 - 12 5,498
Mr. Li Chi Pong Y 1,21 525 - 56 1,802
Mr. Mak Hon Kuen Peter FHRREE 600 - 1,998 12 2,610
7,202 10,525 1,998 92 19,817
Non-executive director: T HE S
Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph T W e A 1,040 2,500 - 12 3,552
8,242 13,025 1,998 104 13,369

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year (2009: Nil).

A ) S SR A AR B AR AT 4 B
B T AT R A i I R S A P
E(CEFFLE ) -
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. T4 I v b R H
The five highest paid employees during the year included AR BE N T 44 B R B LR U AL (2
four (2009: five) directors, details of whose remuneration FERIVE - b)) P > HHF AT
are set out in note 8 above. B b SCRRES o
Details of the remuneration of the one non-director, KEFEN—MEEHTMNEEFZRREZ
highest paid employee for the year, which fell within T 4 5 1 (4 11,000,001% 76 %1,500,0009%
the band from HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000, are as JC) WHI W F
follows:
2010
e S i
HKS$’000
F#x
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fia o HE R EWA S 928
Discretionary performance related bonus B 5% BLAH B Z 1 6 4T 465
Pension scheme contributions RN R 46
1,439
10. INCOME TAX 10. Pi 5Bt
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of B ERTIRIEAEE NEFBELE A
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits ShRE BB R LR 16.5% (ZBRILE ¢
arising in Hong Kong during the year. 16.5%) AF H ##4 -
Group
b L
2010 2009
e Sk 2.3 ZERLA
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T# 0 T
Current — Hong Kong W —-Fw
Charge for the year A4 JiE 16,902 13,054
Overprovision in prior years Vi 4 J3E 8 A (55) (325)
Deferred (note 30) WAL (M iE30) 19,539 (22,676)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year AAEFERLIE S (W 3s) A 36,386 (9,947)
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable

10. Pif3 8¢ (78)
338 JER R R o 2 B R EH L IR B BT B R (G
$H) 2RI Kt (W) B BB B 5t
BRI (s ) W IR T

to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rate to the tax
expense/(credit) at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Group
AL M
2010 2009
—E R ZERNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T
Profit/(loss) before tax SR TSI G Ei= D) 228,555 (89,196)
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate WHRBLEREKICS%
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) (ZFFIE 1 16.5%)
A Z B 37,712 (14,717)
Effect on opening deferred tax of 50 2% e A1 3 01 490 A% A G
decrease in rates 4 5% B - (1,929)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of PR DA Wi o S A ) 2
previous periods BB R 4 (55) (325)
Profit attributable to a jointly-controlled % g 7 AL ] 42 o) B Y
entity i A1) (26) (17)
Income not subject to tax WA BLIRA (2) (117)
Expenses not deductible for tax ECIE Vi a5 527 919
Tax losses utilised from previous periods I DA T30 R O S s 4R (53) -
Tax losses not recognised R e 7R 2 o e e 4R 52 7,348
Reversal of temporary differences upon T B 8 ) 3 I T I
disposal of investment properties 2 5[] g - (1,129)
Recognition of tax losses e w2 45 W 8 DL B AR B Y
brought forward from prior years B e 48 (1,802) -
Others Ho Al 33 20
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s AREMIBEEBARREHEZ
effective rate BRI T (Me2k) 36,386 (9,947)

The share of tax attributable to a jointly-controlled entity

amounting to HK$31,000 (2009: HK$15,000) is included

in “Share of profits and losses of jointly-controlled
entities” on the face of the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

i g 7 3% 1) 42 o) B8 A% B 25 31,000% T

(ZZZJU4E 2 15,0008 70) > BrFALGE 2
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31 March 2010 ZF—FE=H=4+—H

11.

12.

13.

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to owners of
the parent for the year ended 31 March 2010 includes a
profit of approximately HK$760,000 (2009: HK$571,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of

the Company (note 33(b)).

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividends in respect of the year (2009: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used
in the basic earnings/(loss) per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares deemed
to have been issued for no consideration on the assumed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares into ordinary shares.

11.

12.

13.

A

BES vl B A MEAG A, O #1)

NEE_FE—FE=ZH=+T—HILEEN
BARBEA NEAG G E®AN UE1H) F o
5 4)760,000% 70 (ZFFILLE : 571,000%
J6) 1 ¥ A O AR A W] R 3 S R (B R
33(b)) °

JBe &
A RAE BRI B (2%
JUAE : JE) o

B2 i) W A A R AN AN B 4R
A Ol #0)

TRIEAEF], (B TIRLR AT FE R A W)
T mE s F A AN EAG A Ol ) 5H5E > 3
AR BN B AT B B RT3 et

e 2 2 0 T AR AR AR A B A ) T A A
A N A, O 4R) wH5E > st SEnEpT iR
JH 1 3 3 e T R - 349 S 4 S R IR B A B
A7 Ol 48) R i 4R Ji 049 48 B2 79 O 8647 15 08
JBeBH > DLRABBE R AT B A T A SO Y
30 A AT AT 0 0 2 % 8 B T 2 A
AL BE AT 110 3 2 JBE S o - 4 e
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
#mom o OB A R A #

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 5 0 4 B ik

31 March 2010 ZF—FF=H=1+—H

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share are based on:

13, BE 2wl 35 70 0 2 15 A7\ A 5 B 3

O #) (8D

TR AEA R E AR OB ) IR T
WgRE A

2010 2009
e Sk £ ZERIE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#x F#x

Earnings/(loss) #A S OH)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary AR I 3 A R

equity holders of the parent, used B, (1) kiR

in the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) YRR A RS ERERI A A

per share calculation FEARREA 7 (8 192,169 (79,249)

Number of shares
B4y ¥ H
2010 2009
SRR ZREFIE

Shares B4y
Weighted average number of ordinary FHEE R ARBAN S UEER) B

shares in issue during the year, used Fr gk N

in the basic earnings/(loss) [ EFREA Y e

per share calculation T HE S ¥ 8 1,487,418,559 1,486,692,411
Weighted average number of ordinary s % AT R AR 2 B T

shares deemed to be issued for no A7 48 g DL 2 A B 4T 1

consideration on assumed exercise of - 728 JE o RE - 35 B

dilutive share options 11,012,920 -
Weighted average number of ordinary AHAEREE AR (BR)

shares, used in the diluted IRE BT 7 14 3% 78 i

earnings/(loss) per share calculation JIHE S ¥ 85 1,498,431,479 1,486,692,411

KE_Z—-RE=ZA=1—HILFEEGRE
WA R Z 5 AR B3 T R > 5% S
RE Q8 £ 7 05 1 8 47 2 e #8025 7,500,000 8% > J5
PRI 5 S5 i e A S AR B M IR R AR R

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2010 did not include share options
underlying 7,500,000 shares issuable upon exercise of
those options because these share options would not have
a dilutive effect on basic earnings per share for the year.

BREZZFNEZAZ+—H I EE RS
NG 1R Z BTSN RS T R RE - A% SR
HE Q01 28 47 055 i 4T =2 % 3 435,073,600 »
DB B i 5% A G AR AT I R S 2 AR 1 1 i A
A N R B WA o

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 March 2009 did not include share options
underlying 35,073,600 shares issuable upon exercise of
those options because these outstanding share options had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the
prior year.
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31 March 2010 —E—FFE=H=4+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y93k ~ BEA B i i

Group
A AR 1

Furniture,

Machinery fixtures

Leasehold and  and office Motor  Hotel under
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles  construction Total
Bt~

i Ba HERER
By WREE O RGb WARRA W AR it
HK§000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000 ~ HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000

T#x  T#x  T#r  Té#xr  Té#x  T#r  T#x

2010 SRRk
At 31 March 2009 and REZZFNEZAZT—H

at | April 2009: RRZZFNEBA—R

Cost A 10,290 4426 3,854 9912 5,890 - 34310

Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTE R

impairment (524) (2,649) (3,170) (7,024) (3,809) - (17,236)

Net carrying amount IR 9,766 1,171 084 2,888 2,021 - 17,136
Net carrying amount REZZZNENA—H

at 1 April 2009 IR 9,766 11 084 2,888 2,021 - 17,136
Additions hE - - 478 1,98 3,141 - 4917
Disposals ik - - - - (39) - (39)
Depreciation provided during the year — 4FJ§ W78 (259) (889) (418) (1,307) (1,534) - (4,403)
Transfer from properties held for HESKRIZ{TPAIE L N

development (note 15) (Mi15) - - - - - 132,719 132,719
Net carrying amount REZZ-FEZA=1—H

at 31 March 2010 IR 9,507 892 144 2,879 3,589 132,719 150,330
At 31 March 2010: REF-FEZA=1-H:

Cost A 10,290 4426 4331 11,210 8,053 167,640 205,951

Accumulated depreciation and LSyt

impairment (783) (3,534) (3,588) (8,331) (4,464) (34,921) (55,621)
Net carrying amount W T 14 9,507 892 T44 1879 3,589 132,719 150,330
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VA5 0 4 B ik

31 March 2010

CFE-FEZH=1—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y3 ~ BRA B i (4)

(continued)
Group
A AR 1M
Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and  and office Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
B -
K BE HekER
By WEEE Rthi A% i fst
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7 T#r T#r T#x T#x FHT
2009 ZREE
At 1 April 2008: REZZ)ENA R :
Cost A 10,290 4,426 3,887 8,629 6,548 33,780
Accumulated depreciation and LER RSl
impairment (265) (1,764) (2,986) (6,032) (4,768) (15,815)
Net carrying amount T 0 10,025 2,602 901 2,597 1,780 17,965
Net carrying amount RZZRNENA—H
at 1 April 2008 IR A 10,025 2,662 901 2,597 1,780 17,965
Additions i - - 126 1,529 1973 3,628
Disposals e - - - (88) (494) (582)
Depreciation provided ERERYTE
during the year (259) (885) (343) (1,150) (1,238) (3,875)
Net carrying amount RZZFNEZAZ+—H
at 31 March 2009 IR 9,766 1,777 684 2,888 2,021 17,136
At 31 March 2009: REZFMEZA=A—H
Cost A 10,290 4,426 3,854 9,912 5,890 34312
Accumulated depreciation and LER RS
impairment (524) (2,649) (3,170) (7,024) (3,869) (17,236)
Net carrying amount R T A 9,766 1,777 684 2,888 2,021 17,136
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31 March 2010 —E—FFE=H=4+—H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.

(continued)

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s buildings and hotel under
construction with net carrying amounts of approximately
HK$9,507,000 (2009: HK$9,766,000) and HK$132,719,000
(2009: Nil), respectively, were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

The Group’s buildings are situated on the leasehold land
in Hong Kong. Details of the leasehold land are disclosed

in note 17 to the financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

During the year, properties held for development with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$132,719,000 were
reclassified to hotel under construction (note 14) upon

the commencement of construction work.

At 31 March 2009, all of the Group’s properties held for
development were pledged to secure certain bank loans

and general banking facilities granted to the Group (note

29).

The leasehold land included in properties held for
development at 31 March 2009, which was reclassified to
hotel under construction during the year, is situated in

Hong Kong and is held under long term leases.

A

14. Y3 ~ BRA B i (4)

15.

N B —REZH=Z+—H > KEHEG
AH 43 3 £19,507,0008 6 (ZF B L4 ¢
9,766,000% J&) &%132,719,000¥ 6 (ZF =
JUAE « M) B9 A DL R 7E 2 P il OE B R
> A Ky 32 T A 4R — B SR AT A R 9 IR
(Bi5E29)

A SR B M R A VAL B o o AT AR B
b R O B AR M LT o

RAEEERZYE

RAAEFE R > BRI E A 3£132,719,000% 70 1)
FiE R R TN B TR R E
MRS (M3E14) -

RERFZAEZA=Z+—H o AL R
FAIREE e Z 33 QBT » DU AC SR
B T BAT RO B — B SRAT R (R RE29) -

RERFLFEZA=Z+—H o BFEHFAE
B2 YR B AR AW > AR
MAFA > HORRASE RN ES B/
H s o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA5 0 4 B ik

31 March 2010 —E—FFE=H=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. BeEH PR
Group
39|
2010 2009
“E-RE “ERNE
Investment [nvestment
Completed  properties Completed ~ properties
investment under investment under
properties construction Total | properties  construction Total
[i%:77 g %M Vs

Rk wEHR it | REME BENE CL
HK$000  HK$'000 ~ HK$°000 | HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000

T#x T#x T#xz T#7x T#x T#7x

Carrying amount at beginning of year  J4F 1 & 1 471,892 - 471,892 613,104 - 613,104
Transfers from completed HEOBR
investment properties# REWE (127,000) 127,000 - - - -
Additions RE 79,725 22,811 102,536 1,764 - 1,764
Disposals e - - - (21,500) - (21,500)
Gain/(loss) on fair value changes, net /A TFf§ 4 B M/
(EH) > FH# 71,609 46,189 117,798 |  (121,476) - (121,476)
Carrying amount at end of year TRV 4 0 e £ 496,226 196,000 692,226 471,892 - 471,892
An analysis of the Group’s investment properties is as AL B E Y ES T
follows:
2010 2009
TR —RAR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T # T
Hong Kong: s
Long term leases R A 212,360 200,360
Medium term leases v HHFH 40 477,250 269,150
689,610 469,510
Elsewhere* Al 3 [+ 2,616 2,382
692,226 471,892
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IO 0 R B
31 March 2010 ZF—FE=H=4+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. i&’ﬁ%%(ﬁa)

114

At the end of the reporting period, whilst the application is
in progress, the certificate of ownership with respect to one
of the Group’s investment properties with a carrying value of
approximately HK$2,616,000 (2009: HK$2,382,000) at 31 March
2010 had not been issued by the relevant government authorities.

# During the year, certain completed investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$127,000,000 were demolished
and transferred to investment properties under construction for re-
development into new investment properties.

The Group’s completed investment properties and
investment properties under construction were revalued
on 31 March 2010 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$496,226,000 (2009: HK$471,892,000) on market
value, existing use basis and at HK$196,000,000 (2009:
Nil) on residual basis, respectively.

Certain of the Group’s investment properties are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further details
of which are included in note 35(a) to the financial
statements. The gross rental income received and
receivable by the Group and related expenses in respect of

these investment properties are summarised as follows:

TR > B R B T A5 AE i
W BB R R B AT B AR L
MER—HR ZF-FE=ZH=Z+—HZ
W T B % #92,616,0008 78 (B FJL4E -
2,382,000 70 ) < B & W) W S5 E R -

= JRAAEREN > MR E G 4 127,000,0009 50
T T B P SRR S i A 4
B USEFHBRELTREDE -

MR —BEZH=1—H > REBEMEHE
A E M E R PR G E IR
A B M A AF T SR PR R AT A IR W 43 0 e i A
B BUA P78 B e JH A 1 4 496,226,000 % 78
(ZZEZIAE £ 471,892,000850) » DL RARYE
i {1 F 4 7537 A5 £ %% 196,000,0009 76 (%
T ) o

AREEE TRE WL EMAMT
=H > A B Z M 25 R O R M

(a) o ACSE [ 3 1L 5 B ¥ 0 3% i WO % e
ez A A RS BUR A B S R T

Group
ARBEH
2010 2009
R R ZERA
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF# Fi#T
Gross rental income i Nk 15,943 11,298
Direct expenses HEMHX (894) (1,101)
Net rental income LW AT 15,049 10,197

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s investment properties
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$689,250,000
(2009: HK$469,150,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

R RE=ZH=1—H KEEK
T fE 48 %689,250,000% 7C (=T B JL4E ¢
469,150,000% J5) HY B 4 36 TR R - 1
BB T A AR ) — i SRAT R 0 A DR (B R
29) o
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31 March 2010 —E—FE=H=4+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. Bt &Y ¥ (H)
Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties AL G Y ERE— B REN > BN
are included in the “Summary of Properties” section of EAR/E S AR

17.

the annual report.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. B HOAL B A4 ok 8

Group

A 4R 1

2010 2009
e Sk 2.8 ZERNAE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#oC
Carrying amount at beginning of year AR J91 ¥ R T 114,985 118,000
Amortised during the year AR AF B W (3,015) (3,015)
Carrying amount at end of year T4 A% 1 R T A 111,970 114,985
Current portion included in prepayments, BREEEMNKIE - #HE8 R
deposits and other receivables HC At W WK P i BB S 43 (3,015) (3,015)

Non-current portion IR B 108,955 111,970
At 31 March 2010, the Group’s prepaid land lease R_F—RE=ZA=1T—H » REFWEN
payments are pledged to secure general banking facilities FLE ARk O > DLBEICRZ T A 4R M 11y
granted to the Group (note 29). — B ERAT A B (B RE29) o
The above parcels of leasehold land are held under A R D P I B SRR AR

medium term leases and are situated in Hong Kong. W o
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IO 0 R B
31 March 2010 —E—FE=H=4+—H

18. GOODWILL 18. W&

116

The amount of the goodwill capitalised as an asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position, arising from

the acquisition of minority interests of certain subsidiaries

after 1 April 2001 is as follows:

PR F AR A — H AR O T 2
A WA A A 2 PR R EA
Mo ot £ S 20 AR 0028 — JE R 72 I F

Group

A 4R 1
2010 2009
kgl | CEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# i F#oC

At beginning and end of year: TR R AR

Cost A 14,717 14,717
Accumulated impairment R (14,717) (14,717)
Net carrying amount W T v E - -

There was no movement in goodwill during the current

and prior years.

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial
statements, the Group applied the transitional provisions
of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in respect of business
combinations which occurred prior to 2001, to remain

eliminated against consolidated reserves.

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated
goodwill reserve, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to 1 April 2001, was approximately
HK$5,035,000 as at 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010.

Such amount of goodwill is stated at its cost.

TAACEE L R b4 B > T A ) o

o B A W RE2 4P — 2 R AR
VR R P e 5 S o U 5 3 5 A O AL
R R R F AR R A RS P
A7 TR 4 R B AE T AH FR B o

BREZFRFLENH -HEZFE-FFE=)
St H o RIEFF A - H SO
Ja 2 ) i A TP B A A R P R
SR 5,035,000 7 o A B B ST %
HRAFIE -
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31 March 2010 —E—FE=H=4+—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. B )& 2 vl 2 H 4
Company
Y /|
2010 2009
e S 2.3 ZERNAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T # T#x
Unlisted shares, at cost Ik B B - R AE 64,147 64,147
Due from subsidiaries B g 2 =] R 216,421 215,542
280,568 279,689

WF i 2> ] IR 75 S HRA ~ S G e S 2 Bk

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. e

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,

WF g 2 1 K W B i A 2 20 L 4 - MR o

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from

subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWMBARERWT ¢
Nominal Percentage
Place of value of of equity
incorporation issued and attributable to Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital the Company activities
ALY WA A% A 2> i) ME A
# B 5848 b 85 e I A i i JBe HE i By e B3/
Direct  Indirect
Hik [HE?S
Profit Chain Investments British Virgin US$70,000 100 — Investment
Limited Islands/ Ordinary holding
Hong Kong 70,0003 7t 1 e
e AR il
i
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31 March 2010 —E—FFE=H=+—H

118

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. JA B8 A vl 2 BE 3% (7)
Nominal Percentage
Place of value of of equity
incorporation issued and attributable to Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital the Company activities
ik K o7 CET R A 4y 5 AN
# 1% Be 58 4% b 85 3 I A i JBe i T Ay e B E 3/
Direct  Indirect
H% [
Able Engineering Hong Kong HK$4,789,000 - 100 Building
Company Limited HH Ordinary construction,
TR LTFRA R AF HK$11,211,000 maintenance
Non-voting and civil
deferred engineering
(Note) works
4,789,0009 7C ¥ 8 Jit M 3
11,211,000 7¢ s K
e 13 3% R R S it AT
(K #t)
Gold Vantage Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Property
BAWAT EaRi Ordinary holding
1009 7T ¥ 48 B LE S EC]
Excel Engineering Hong Kong HK$16,000,000 - 100 Building
Company Limited HH Ordinary construction,
T2k TREARA A 16,000,000 7t maintenance
W m and civil
engineering
works
M
Mt R
AT
Gadelly Construction Hong Kong HK$4,200,000 - 100 Building and
Company Limited R Ordinary engineering
Jin 5 ) e S PR A F 4,200,000% ¢ construction
W M R TR
iy
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ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010 £EH&

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. JA B8 A vl 2 BE 3% (7)
Nominal Percentage
Place of value of of equity
incorporation issued and attributable to Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital the Company activities
ik K o7 CET R 7R 2 v A
# 1% B 584 b 85 3 I A i JBe HE ¥ B e B E 3/
Direct  Indirect
H% [
Able Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Building
ZREHEA WA s Ordinary construction
10,0009 7t ¥ 4 fit Mg
Able Maintenance Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Building
Company Limited s Ordinary construction and
ZARHEIER RAF 10,000% 7T ¥ 38 % maintenance
works
T 0 e
Hefs TR
Covalla Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property
AR R 2 i Ordinary development
10,0009 7E ¥ % Ji UE L s
Good Trader Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Property
EREFRAH & 1 0¥ 58 i) development
LIE S 9
Great Business Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Property
EEARAH R 1 o ¥ 48 I holding
WERH
Comfort Home Properties Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Property
Limited HFH 10 8 development
ZHEEEFARAT L/EX 9
Win Glories Limited Hong Kong HK$9,600 - 100 Property
Bl A PR A F] vl Ordinary holding
9,600% 7t ¥ 48 B ESE R

119




120

o VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

B

B OKR A B

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 0 4 B ik

31 March 2010 —E—FFE=H=4+—H

A

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. JA B8 A vl 2 BE 3% (7)
Nominal Percentage
Place of value of of equity
incorporation issued and attributable to Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital the Company activities
ik K o7 eGSR 7 2 v A
# 1% B 584 b s 85 3 I A i JB A T Ay e B E 3/
Direct  Indirect
H% [
Hobol Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Property
TFA R H g3 1 70 % 7 i)k holding
WERH
Win Extra Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Property
54 A R4 w i 1 e i holding
L/ESEEC]
Frason Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property
HEAE P A A H FH Ordinary holding
10,0009 72 ¥ % Ji LE S EE]

Note: The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends or to

receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
company or to participate in any distribution on winding-up.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected

the results for the year or formed a substantial portion

of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

M+ SRR S AR R A R S R WS IR B o 7 SEE

BEBE A il 4y 5 AT ] M RO €7 3 1 5
JiE R A BT 5 O A R R I
LA 53R -

B R H AR R R
o A AR 2 L 3 A A 2 A A R
Jig 2y 7] o HEAE R Ay o B I A B A R 2 B
Bt S G RHR IT R -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA5 0 4 B ik

31 March 2010 —E—FFE=H=4+—H

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 20. J& 3% ) ¢ o BE 8 22 2R RO IE l
ENTITIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY- & ) B8k
CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Group
A 4R 1
2010 2009
s
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# i F#oC
Share of net assets JEAY A 258 106
Due from jointly-controlled entities 7 Wi A (] 42 ) B K O 8,598 90
The amounts due from jointly-controlled entities are A e e ] e o) R T U SR~ SR R e
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of ] 22 %2 3K o
repayment.
Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as follows: e P A BRI
Percentage of
Place of P54 | By e
Business  incorporation/ Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name structure registration interest power sharing activity
3 e
# E 3T bR AR B AANSR T
Excel-China Harbour Body Hong Kong 70 50 70  Engineering
Joint Venture unincorporate i contractor
6 i o R 4 9 T 3 I 2 [ A [ T AR A L
Able E&M Engineering Limited Hong Kong 50 50 50 Construction
Limited company FoE contractor
ZHEE TRARAH HRAF 2 R L T
Leighton-Able Joint Body Hong Kong 49 50 49  Engineering
Venture unincorporate Tr s contractor
P — ORI 3 3k 1 o THAEH
The above investments in jointly-controlled entities are e B A S [ e A Y 3 3 P AR
indirectly held by the Company. AEIER -
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VA5 0 4 B ik

31 March 2010 —E—FFE=H=+—H

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 20. J 36 I e ) BC 8 2 HE Ak ME W I I
ENTITIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY- 3% ) B K O (A)
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial T 7 B R AR 4 [ 36 ) e ) O M SR I
information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities: U
Group
AREH
2010 2009
SRR ZEFENAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T80
Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ G4l 3 [e] 42 ) B 48 0
assets and liabilities: BEAME:
Current assets i) A 43,276 12,175
Current liabilities A (43,018) (12,069)
Net assets B 258 106

Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ 434 38 ] 2 ) BT RS S A -

results:

Revenue WA 90,288 66,391

Other income HAbug A 3,290 3,541
93,578 69,932

Total expenses Filic (93,395) (69,811)

Income tax expense BB (31) (15)

Profit after tax i B 4% ¥ 1] 152 106
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
#"om o K A R A #

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IO 0 R B
31 March 2010 —E—FFE=H=+—H

21. CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION AND 21. B E - WAL TEAS
OTHER CONTRACTS

Group
A AR 1M
2010 2009
e S Z.3 ZRFEILE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x F#x
Gross amount due from customers for FEWE P Z A # TR sk SR
contract work 31,974 142,190
Gross amount due to customers for FEAT % P 2 A ) TR s AR
contract work (84,171) (140,657)
(52,197) 1,533
Contract costs incurred plus recognised B # A T B R 2 e R 2 vk A
profits less recognised losses to date B O Z R 4,417,233 3,395,038
Less: Progress billings Vs A R W R OE (4,469,430) (3,393,505)
(52,197) 1,533
22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22. B PR
The Group’s properties under development as at 31 March MR-BFNFEEZHA=Z+—H » REAMER
2009 were expected to be recovered after a period of more e EFEAE R T R RES -
than twelve months.
During the year, properties under development with an AR > BRI A 3£40,283,0008 78 (—
aggregate carrying amount of HK$40,283,000 (2009: Nil) FEIVE ) MBR PR KR EE T
were transferred to properties held for sale (note 23) upon T 58 BIRF i S 5 A A B 2 3 (BiFE23)
the completion of construction work.
At 31 March 2009, the Group’s properties under R-RENFE=ZA=ZT—H » REFWERE
development were situated in Hong Kong and were held AR AR S o HDUP IR FT -

under medium term leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA5 0 4 B ik

31 March 2010 —E—FFE=H=+—H

23.

24.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$40,283,000 were transferred from properties
under development (note 22) upon the completion of
construction work (2009: Nil).

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s properties held for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$40,833,000
(2009: HK$40,833,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

23.

A

RAEREBEZYE

R T 6 A 440,283,000 M F G E B Z
WETI R TR R A BRE R E
(B 3E22) (ZRFJU4E - ) o

Mo BEZA=Z+—H > KAEEE
T 18 A 2£40,833,0009 06 (ZF R JU4E ¢«
40,833,000%7C ) W FA 15 B 2 3 BRI
> DURE B T AR [ B — SR SRAT AR A
(BF5E29) »

An analysis of the Group’s properties held for sale is as AEHMPFAHEHREZHEINWT -
follows:
Group
A4
2010 2009
e Sk 2.8 ZREE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# i F#T
Hong Kong: HHs
Long term lease R E 40,833 40,833
Medium term lease PR 40,283 -
81,116 40,833
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24. HEWOR

Accounts receivable consist of receivables for contract
work and rentals under operating leases. The payment
terms of contract work receivables are stipulated in
the relevant contracts. Rentals are normally payable in

advance.

At 31 March 2010, retentions receivable included
in accounts receivable amounted to approximately

HK$90,922,000 (2009: HK$71,402,000).

BERFBFEAFHTRAKEEHEREZ
JE O IE o i %) TR HE O IH 2 32 A ek i
A B & AP ET B o AL — B AR I 3
ﬁ‘ o

R-F—FE=ZA=1+—H  BREZPE
15 HE WA B K TE 49 %590,922,0008 70 (—F %
JUEE : 71,402,000858) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IO 0 R B
31 March 2010 —E—FFE=H=+—H

24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 24. HEWOR (8

The aged analysis of the accounts receivable, net of
allowance, as at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

TP e 1R 2 ME WO AR (11 B R ) A R
AT

Group

AL M
2010 2009
e S Z.3 ZERNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T
Current — 3 months 9 — 34 H 216,621 198,110
4 — 6 months 4—6ff H 2,997 446
Over 6 months oM A 58,538 9,577
278,156 208,133

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group

considers that the recovery of an amount is remote, in

A B WA s Y AR 48 7 B D 4 1K R R
B> i 7 4 T 5 2 W Ik I A K AR A
SRS G o FERZ A0 T > WA R ErE M B

which case an impairment loss is recognised by directly 5 0 T WA R TR A AR T 3 o
writing down the carrying amount of the accounts
receivable.
The movement in the allowance for impairment of T W A R I S B
accounts receivable is as follows:
Group
b Y|
2010 2009
“R R ZREILE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T # Fi#or
Beginning of year AEH) - 488
Impairment loss reversed WA s 18 [l - (488)
End of year & - -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 Tk 3 B ke
31 March 2010 = —FFE=H=1—H
24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)
The aged analysis of the accounts receivable that are past

due but not impaired is as follows:

24. HEWCR K ()
A8 S0 L S 08 Dk 1 Py R 5 JE G B A
T

Group

A 4R 1
2010 2009
“R R ZERNAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T # T#x

Past due but not impaired: 76 H1 R S kA <

One to three months past due 13 A 731 7,362
Four to six months past due 4z o A 467 307
Opver six months past due A1 o fE H 9,437 9,566
10,635 17,235
Neither past due nor impaired BE 40 78 191 0 20 9k 1 267,521 190,898
278,156 208,133

Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no allowance for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancement over
these balances.

Accounts receivable that are neither past due nor
impaired relate to a number of independent customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

A 351 4L S 9 Py S BR k  A B A T  S
FF o A SR [ 32 B WA Sk AT o AR
DRSS > AAFERR R > S F AR A
SRR A > DA B AR R A I A TR K
5 > ELAS AR vT A ol el A B A B o AR
VR ST 8 B 2% 45 A A 5 A A o KA ot RS AR
A -

T L% PR B > 4B S5 I 408 X0 9 R R 8
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31 March 2010 —E—FFE=H=+—H

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. THAT AR ~ % 4 B JE A e ok
RECEIVABLES
Group
A4
2010 2009
e Sk 2.3 ZRFEILE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x T
Prepayments TH A 3R 31,692 14,378
Deposits and other receivables ¥ 4 T 3L A E ek 28,704 32,203
Due from a related company IR WAL I W A ] sk S - 300
60,396 46,881
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. b e O O SV o b A 6% P £
The financial assets included in the above balances relate 355 114 45 P 7 T R o G B0 A A Bk 1
to receivables for which there was no recent history of Wk I o
default.
The amount due from a related company was unsecured, JRE WAL R0 W 2 ) K I % SR A~ AR R R
interest-free and repayable on demand. SR B IR o
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31 March 2010 —=FE—FFE=H=4+—H
26. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 26. Bk fEsk kBl & kB & 5%

EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
AL AR
2010 2009 2010 2009
R R “RFNIE “R R “EFNE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7 T#7 T#7x T#7r
Pledged deposits CHEAT 7 3k
Bank balances pledged Ry SRAT b HUE
against banking facilities FEA 0 SR AT A K - 1,043 - -
Time deposits pledged s VLR AEHCAT
against: TR
— bank overdraft facilities - WITBEXH 1,075 2,176 - -
— other bank facilities — oAl SR AT AL E B - 2,293 - -
1,075 5,512 - -
Cash and cash equivalents B R &5
Cash and bank balances Bl& B AT A B 164,860 114,136 493 426
Non-pledged time deposits JREHIE 1 E 39117 K 44,162 92,455 - -
209,022 206,591 493 416
The bank balances and time deposits pledged to banks AT R E BRI T E T84T - 1A
were to secure general banking facilities granted to the A A R — W R AT RS 2 AR (B EE29) o
Group (note 29).
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on AT A HMIEE H BT FSH RS E W
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are AR BB B o S5 AR B R
made for varying periods of between one day and three Eo M REZMA R > P AE
months depending on the immediate cash requirements W4 AR g - AN £ T 4% 1) 8 0 A R )
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short KPR B o SRAT A0 K& TR I IR S I AR
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged A0 4 T B 2 B A AR 43 P SR A v Y 4R
deposits are deposited with banks with high credit ratings o

and no recent history of default.
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S 5 Tk 3 B ke
31 March 2010 = —FFE=H=1—H
27. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:

27. HEAY HR 3K

]

TP i 48 0 AR 2 A Hi i R 8 3 A

Group

A 4R 1
2010 2009
e S £.3 ZERNAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T # T#x
Current — 3 months BR8] — 38 A 216,470 147,426
4 — 6 months 4—6fE H 18,699 24,412
Over 6 months e A H 66,101 66,648
301,270 238,486

At 31 March 2010, retentions payable included in
accounts payable under current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$66,012,000 (2009: HK$65,653,000).

Included in the accounts payable are trade payables of
approximately HK$181,000 (2009: HK$181,000) due to
related parties who are family members of a director of the
Company, which are unsecured, interest-free and have no

fixed terms of repayment.

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing. The payment

terms are stipulated in the relevant contracts.

R-F—FRE=ZHAH=1+—H JIERB A
i T Z HE A Wk b 13 65 HE A AR W kB A
66,012,000% 76 (ZFF LA : 65,653,000%

JG) e

FEAKE A WK R A By A R AR A
A — 2 R R TR R B Z IR A181,000%
J6 (ZFFJUAE ¢ 181,0008 78 ) J5 AL -
B B % I 1] 2 R R o

JREAS BRe 3k 2 A LG, o AR A B A 4

T o
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. JU i HE A Kk B T B
Group Company
AEH A ]
2010 2009 2010 2009
SRR | ZRFBNE | SRR | ZRFBNUE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F# Fi# T#x Fi#T
Other payables JL i JE £ 3K 10,606 11,223 208 210
Accruals TR 2,379 2,253 - -
12,985 13,476 208 210
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are expected HABREAT AR FE B > WHBIAE—F N EHE -
to be settled within one year.
29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 29. w B 8T B
Group
N
2010 2009
R R ZERLA
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F# Fi#T
Current b U]
Bank overdrafts — secured and SRATE X — A # K& - 3,482
at floating interest rates R B A AR5 R G
Bank loans — secured and at SRATE K — A H & 178,104 198,185
floating interest rates R B R A5 RS
178,104 201,667
Non-current B2
Bank loans — secured and at SRAT B — A I R A% 398,773 381,483
floating interest rates 7 W) A 251 SR B
576,877 583,150
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A

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 29. il B & 4T fEak (4)
(continued)
2010 2009
- S £.3 ZERNAE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T # T T#x
Analysed into: i
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: WITERKBEX »
BORHIW T
Within one year or on demand — A N B B R T £ R 178,104 201,667
In the second year 5 AR 33,856 25,486
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BRI
(BHEERW4) 103,288 74,978
Beyond five years T4, b 261,629 281,019
576,877 583,150

The interest rates of the Group’s bank loans are primarily
repriced every month based on prime rate or HIBOR
changes.

The Group’s secured bank loans and overdrafts are

secured by:

(i) legal charges over the Group’s investment properties,
which had an aggregate carrying amount at the
end of the reporting period of approximately

HK$689,250,000 (2009: HK$469,150,000);

A5 [ SRAT B K 0 R 23 T AL e A R R
A W SRAT [] SE 7 S 4 ) i A ) TR R M

ACER A G BRAT Bk R I S LR BIIE H AR
A

(1) 7 oK 48 AR T 49 45 689,250,0009
JC (ZEFIUAE : 469,150,000870) Z A
HEEBEEN L E W 5
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31 March 2010 ZF—FF=H=1—H

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 29. Wt B 847 8k (8)

(continued)

(ii) legal charges over the Group’s buildings and
prepaid land lease payments, which had carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period of
approximately HK$9,507,000 (2009: HK$9,766,000)
and HK$111,970,000 (2009: HK$114,985,000),

respectively;

(iii) legal charges over the Group’s hotel under
construction, which had an aggregate carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period
of approximately HK$132,719,000 (2009:
HK$127,000,000, classified as properties held for

development);

(iv) legal charges over the Group’s properties held for
sale, which had a carrying value at the end of the
reporting period of approximately HK$40,833,000
(2009: HK$40,833,000);

(v) the pledge of certain of the Group’s cash and

bank balances and time deposits amounting to

approximately HK$1,075,000 (2009: HK$5,512,000)
at the end of the reporting period; and

(vi) the assignment of the Group’s financial benefits

under certain contract works. Accounts

receivable under those contract works amounted

to approximately HK$59,194,000 (2009:

HK$95,770,000) as at 31 March 2010.

In addition, the Company has provided corporate
guarantees against certain of the Group’s
banking facilities to the extent of approximately
HK$1,410,667,000 (2009: HK$1,091,281,000) as at 31
March 2010.

All of the above bank loans and overdrafts of the Group
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts approximate to

their fair values.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

A 5 g % T AT R A SRR
VB o R OR - R A 4
A #1%59,507,000% 6 (ZFF LA ¢
9,766,000% Jt) K 111,970,000% JG (=
FEILE ¢ 114,985,000 7C) 5

A A% 39 R A MR T 4 4% 132,719,000 9%
G 1A ZA 455 [ 75 s v Y I A 9 R (2
FZILAE 127,000,000 5T > 40815 F
GlEBRZME) ;

T $ir 5 39 AR M 1T B 49 25 40,833,000% 7t
(ZFFI4E : 40,833,0008 50 ) By A 45
EREAEEREZENEEMTT

A T 3 AR 2 4 451,075,000 08 (=
R + 5,512,000870) 2 A< 5 B %
T B4 B SRAT 45 % DA K 8 A7 Ak
ELN3

WERARAEELE TEERTRAAZ
MBI R B —FE=ZH=1+—
H > A B % 5 58 TR & 40 il e WO R
WKOH 159,194,000 78 (R F A ¢
95,770,000¥75) °

WA s REF—REZHZ=1—H > KAH
Fe A 3 SR AT b B PR B 491,410,667,000
Wt (ZFFIAE £ 1,091,281,000%78) Z A
A AR o

ARSI A B2t SR AT Bk R S DA T
HEAL o

EAR R o A E AT RO 3 Y R T
SLIL A AR
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31 March 2010 ZF—FE=H=4+—H

30. DEFERRED TAX 30. % %€ BLIH
The components of net deferred tax (assets)/liabilities TAASAE JBE Y 7E 5 G B R DL 38 v e 5 AR AT
with the net balance recognised in the consolidated I (B a) /AR B RO &5 &
statement of financial position and the movements during AREHWT -

the year are as follows:

Group Depreciation Losses available
AgH allowance in for offsetting
excess of related Revaluation  against future

depreciation  of properties  taxable profits Total
i LET:F3
BB % 1y M R B 3t A

Rk LRT/ES Z ki #i ik

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x TH#x T#r TH#x

At 1 April 2008 RZBENENA—H 2,570 35,149 (3,950) 33,769

Deferred tax charged/(credited) WEEERME / (FEA)
to profit or loss of the statement MR AR N B

of comprehensive income BRI (Hf7E10)

during the year (note 10) 429 (23,083) (22) (22,676)
At 31 March 2009 and RERFMEZA=Z+—H

at 1 April 2009 B _ZFNENA—H 2,999 12,066 (3,972) 11,093

Deferred tax charged/(credited) WRAEERMEA / (FEA)
to profit or loss of the statement e N kR

of comprehensive income BRI (Mfit10)

during the year (note 10) 840 19,372 (673) 19,539
At 31 March 2010 BoF-FEZR=+—H 3,839 31,438 (4,645) 30,632
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of AREBAEFBEE R BEBLY S
approximately HK$93,965,000 (2009: HK$101,627,000). 93,965,000% 7C ( = RZJLLE : 101,627,000%5
Subject to the final assessment of the Hong Kong Inland JC) c BB WRBB R REEERE > WERE
Revenue Department, these tax losses are available EEAAERBIS EE BB ERZA
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits B Z RARERBRF) o AN TE O EHR
of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax #128,152,000¥ 70 (= ZJLAE : 24,073,000
assets have been recognised in respect of approximately VT HER B IERTEHEE - N AA KA
HK$28,152,000 (2009: HK$24,073,000) of such losses. BN R AR A 4 JRE SRR A I DL HE B A A - W
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of S J0E B B3 K £765,813,000 78 ( R E LA -
the remaining amount of approximately HK$65,813,000 77,554,000% JG ) i 72 4% & B JE G 2 -

(2009: HK$77,554,000) as it is not considered probable
that there would be sufficient future taxable profits to

utilise such amount.
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30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

31.

At 31 March 2010 and 2009, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability for taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries or joint ventures as the Group has
no liability to additional tax should such amounts be

remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

30. B % BLH (4)

i = - LEVESEN-R
A B 24 ) £ 2 TR R
A A A AT e R AE B 44
DA 4% 5 L 0 A 2 00
BLIEL0 -

A i i H B SR S A e A B E A T A BLAR
Boo

SHARE CAPITAL 31. AR
Shares I By
2010 2009
e S 213 ZERNAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#x Foc
Authorised: AR
4,000,000,000 (2009: 4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,000/8 (=B E JL4E
ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each 4,000,000,000 /8¢ ) 4 JB 1éi &
0.025%s 70 2 % 73 Bt 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: LB AT B g R AR
1,487,463,600 (2009: 1,487,283,600) 1,487,463,600/8 (=R FJUL4E ¢
ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each 1,487,283,600/8% ) 4 It i
0.025%s 70 2 % 78 Bt 37,187 37,182

During the year, the subscription rights attaching to
180,000 (2009: 1,998,000) share options were exercised
at the subscription price of HK$0.165 (2009: HK$0.4) per
share, resulting in the issue of 180,000 (2009: 1,998,000)
shares of HK$0.025 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of approximately HK$30,000 (2009:
HK$799,000).

AR JE > B 180,000 (= F JL4E
1,998,000 ) Ji# it HE - i 5% ik RE 2 R 19 it
0.165W 76 (ZFF LA ¢ 0.4%70) 1Y iR W 15
AFAE > PR AT B 1 4 %5 0.02 5 4 7T 1 IR Ay
180,000 (ZF FJL4E : 1,998,000) » &
15k 2 0 A B 4 A1 £ %530,0009 78 (—
TEILLE 1 799,000¥0) °
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 31. BeA (4)
Shares (continued) e oy (4)
A summary of the transactions during the year with AR PE bl AR By AR A W] OB AT A AR Y
reference to the above movement in the Company’s issued EEMERE W ¢

ordinary share capital is as follows:

Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
AT B A% £ JBe B3
¥ H JBe A it e S il

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$000
T#T T T

At 1 April 2008 W _FR/NFENH—H 1,485,285,600 37,132 167,404 204,536
Share options exercised AT 5 1 S % 1,998,000 50 749 799
Transfer from share i JE s A A

option reserve - - 301 301

At 31 March 2009 and RoZZARE=ZH=+—H

at 1 April 2009 B ZBFJEMNA—H  1,487,283,600 37,182 168,454 205,636
Share options exercised AT o g J B 180,000 5 25 30
Transfer from share i JE s A A

option reserve - - 8 8
At 31 March 2010 PR -BEZ=1T—H  1,487,463,600 37,187 168,487 205,674
Share options U B B
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are A A ) i P AR T ) AN A B A M
included in note 32 to the financial statements. 320
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32. Jilk I i it

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 5 August
2002, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
full-time employees, including any executive and non-
executive directors of the Group. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 8 September 2002 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in

force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue as at the date when the Share Option Scheme was
approved by the shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Share
Option Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is

subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive,
officer or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

MR —RF 4\ A T H 88 2 %8 e ik
S > A R I SR v R A S FO A (T 0 A
REGHEL]) o

S e M ) 2 H R > B AR AR T S A
ZIRIE N E R Z BB 2 H1E AT
FISEIED o iR Bl 2 B A 2 R B A
EMZ 2R E » AT IR E
%o HEMHETHE N —FF AT NE &
B> bR 3 U REB BB RT AL > % EHE A
% HOR A 300> A8 8 4 o

AL 2 R ) A R 2 R AT N
MW Rz R e B H > R — RIS R AR
R A 2 ] I SR v i e At 2 H
A B CBAT IR A M 10% Z R o AR AR AT
- A S0 PR R BB o T i i B
BlZ MG EK S BRI FEITRMNZ
B BT E > DA FIR AR Z CEATR
A 1% % B o ] P 3 — 25 45 th 78 761 2t P ]
2 Vi Je R U B AT Je ROK o b o

BYAAFES  BETBARREERK
DRSNS EARUY E PN = Je R
PR L IR AT E S e o US> FEATAT
RN GRS S AR 3 e
SHEBTEFRBESH B RALZ
AT A] S JBEE - AR AR A R A I 2 LB AT B
0.1%35k 48 {4 8 1815,000,00095 7 (AR 45 A< 2 ]
B2 H B Z BEE ) & > R Se R ROR
NS N i
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. BB wE (%)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within seven days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the
offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but should not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; or (iii) the nominal value of the
shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme during the year:

2 2 0 M b TR 4R Y H SR S
B MR NI BT 4w
Y o 452 th 2 0 M M 2 A 8 29 D o o o
RE > T %9 ] 2 0k FH o AN AR I T
iy H IR st A4 -

Sl B B AT 0 Pl o R RO AR T
PI=F Z i+ (i) A2 Al ey I i Je e 2
HH 917 6 22 B 4 H (B i 81 2 i 8 5
(i) AR 2> W) Jie 3% B 452 th 390 i 4 22 5 H
TP B 22 P BT k2 o 3 o A 5 G A A H
JBe Ay i L

S B SN S O AN S BB O R RO
T ERFZHER -

e R B M ) o AR B 1 R AT 19 S T
mE

2010 2009
e S22 ZEFE

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options | exercise price of options
A7 0848 i JBe it A7 A S Je
o i1 3 MH | kI BB H
HKS$ ’000 HK$ ’000

per share per share
IR T TH BT Tt
At 1 April WHH—H 0.480 35,074 0.396 29,572
Granted during the year o NZT - - 0.790 7,500
Exercised during the year AN AT 0.165 (180) 0.400 (1,998)
At 31 March W=A=+—H 0.481 34,894 0.480 35,074
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was HK$0.362
(2009: HK$0.4).

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

oA

S

32. W B RE T B (48)
TRACAE I PR 17 1 PR 70 39T
HESF 24 B4 A 250,362 78 (R B4 «
0.4¥3E) °

T IR o WG ARAT B S A AT 0 R e AT
T

Exercise
price
per share*
Number of options M Exercise period
Jike I8 B H TR AT
2010 2009 HK$  (d/mly)
ZR-RE | ZEFRNE #ix (A H %)
Granted to employees: BYRE :
On 7 December 2006 RE-FZAHETZHER 360,000 540,000 0.165  07/06/2007 - 06/06/2012
Granted to directors: ByEH:
On 31 August 2007 RZZFLENAZT—H 27,033,600 27,033,600 0.400  03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012
On 2 June 2008 REZFNEAHZH 7,500,000 7,500,000 0.790  02/12/2008 - 01/12/2013
34,893,600 35,073,600

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment

in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the
prior year was HK$1,998,000, approximately HK$0.27
each. The Group recognised a share option expense of
approximately HK$1,998,000 during the year ended 31
March 2009.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. BB wE (%)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the prior year was estimated as at the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the

model used for the year ended 31 March 2009:

b AR PR T Y DL RE 25 45 S P i PR AR Y A oF
ELAEHR A [ A 0 38 — & W8 307 | 90 4 e e A K
BT H > A5 G5 T Ia S B RE A o A A
s fE A EE o TRIR TREZZZE
ZH = H kAR B TRy i A S A

2009

e = IS

Date of grant (d/m/y) BYHB(H A/ %) 02/06/2008
Closing price on date of grant (HK$ per share) T H 1 Wi (B s oT) 0.790
Dividend yield (% per annum) B (14%) -
Expected volatility (%) TR e B & (%) 86.00
Historical volatility (%) BB R R (%) 86.00
Risk-free interest rate (% per annum) 90 L o ) R (B 4E %) 1.35
Expected life of options (year) FEIT A I A AT B (4 1

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated

into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
34,893,600 share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 34,893,600
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$872,000 and share premium of
HK$15,926,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 26,445,600 share options outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 1.77% of the Company’s shares in issues as
at that date.

wt AP RME I o R 58 B 43 T i M i vl 3L

R A o B RE S )R AR A W) B8 AT AE
A 4 i I B #534,893,6004 o JE Y A ) B T
B KRG > 0 B AT AE Ab 0 R RE S 2 AT
HE » A% 24 ] 5% 8% 4734,893,600 /1% #H A % 4
Wt > 3 i B A< #5872,0008 JG A0 B A< s 1 A
15,926,000¥ 7 CRINERBEATE) -

W BRI H > B RRE S S N A A ]
B AT A8 A Y IRERE 2£26,445,60010 > H B A
S WE H BT B 1.77% o

ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010 £E#H&

139




o VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

#®OoHF OB K O R A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA5 0 4 B ik

31 March 2010 —F—FE=H=+—H

140

movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the
excess of the nominal value of the shares and the
share premium account of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the
listing of the Company’s shares, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years remain in
consolidated goodwill reserve as explained in note 18

to the financial statements.

33. RESERVES 33. Gl
(a) Group (a) AHEH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the A SR 0 I A A B TR T A5 B 2 ok 4 e L B

filt 5 5 B ©L 12 510 o 5 B 2 5 B o -

ASE ) 2 BONTLR TR AEAR L 7 ey b
T AR e A 4 AL W 2 D 4 ) 2
B A T L B0 JBE A i B R A 2y 28 468 % 5
WA J 2 ) 2 S0y TG AT 2 AR 2 ) Sy
A E 1 H 43 o

S5 785 R A B R LS P ARR o R R AR AR BE K
S O g A ) T 2 2 TR B T AR
P A Ao £ v R o
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33. RESERVES (continued) 33, filt i (41)
(b) Company (b) AAN]
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
Joe B B B YNt 32! W
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
13 T#7 T#T T#L T#7 T#T
At 1 April 2008 REZZFNENA—H 167,404 63,948 4,401 4197 239,950
Total comprehensive income A 2 T e A 44 46
for the year - - - 511 571
Issue of shares BT 31 749 - - - 49
Transfer upon exercise ORI T O 17 0 1 45
of share options 31 301 - (301) - -
Equity-settled share DIRESS B0
option arrangements i B 22 31 - - 1,998 - 1,998

At 31 March 2009 and RoEEAEZAZ+—H

at 1 April 2009 RRZZZAENA 168,454 63,948 6,098 4,768 243,268
Total comprehensive income  ACAF i 2 T e A48 4

for the year - - - 760 760
Issue of shares Bk 31 15 - - - 25
Transfer upon exercise ORI A 17 68 1 45

of share options 31 8 - (8) - -
At 31 March 2010 [ Sy B 168,487 63,948 6,090 5,528 244,053
The contributed surplus of the Company represents INT) 2 SNBSS A A A T ey b
the excess of the fair value of the shares of the TR A o) L O B > P A D A
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group AP R AR S A B AN F 2
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s A5 T B8 4T 2 AN A T A 2 B 4% o
shares, over the nominal value of the Company’s MIBERE LN\ —EATE > AAF
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the A TR T B A0 Z A b i 3 5 ok
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company M B4R o

may make distributions to its members out of the

contributed surplus in certain circumstances.
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33. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Company (continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payment transactions in note 2.4 to the

financial statements.

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

At 31 March 2010, the guarantees given by the
Group to certain banks in respect of performance
bonds in favour of certain contract customers
amounted to approximately HK$24,525,000 (2009:
HK$19,325,000).

At 31 March 2010, the Company has given
guarantees in favour of certain banks to the
extent of approximately HK$1,410,667,000 (2009:
HK$1,091,281,000) in respect of banking facilities
granted by those banks to certain subsidiaries of
the Company, of which HK$601,402,000 (2009:
HK$626,576,000) was utilised.

In the ordinary course of the Group’s construction
business, the Group has been subject to a number of
claims due to personal injuries suffered by employees
of the Group or the Group’s subcontractors in
accidents arising out of and in the course of their
employment. The directors are of the opinion that
such claims are well covered by insurance and would
not result in any material adverse impact on the
financial position or results and operations of the

Group.

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
16 to the financial statements) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay rental

deposits.

VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

# Ok A B & #

33. fi i (%)

(b)

A2l (51)

i SRR Gt 4 P 2 T~ 1 AR AT 8 A B
BEZ P RUERE IR > 5 SUA I 5 e A%
wE2.435 DL A 2 5 B 0 S A 22 5 @t
B SR A R o

34. B A

(a)

(b)

RoF-FEZA=Z1—H » REEBR
BTARHEFZBARBMAS T4 TR
A7 B 5 AR 2 B #924,525,000 0 (=&
ZIAE 219,325,000 58) ©

W oB-FEZHA=+—H s AAF
HTRATH TAA AT WA ¥ Z 80
1715 S A & B0 401,410,667,000% 7 (=
FEZNAE 1 1,091,281,000% 78) 1 7% %
SRATME AR - A BIFHE 2w CBh A 3t
W2 SR AT 15 B 4H601,402,0009 78 (=&
FIAE 1 626,576,000 58) ©

TEAGE 2 H W@ IE B me D > W
A5 T A A T o e 2 R R 3% e A
1] 208 T A DA B 32 465 1) A4 I R A o
RN B R R PR Bz 52 PR
B > WO B R R o B AR M B BOIR
DU B S A B K S AT ) T K i

2 K

35. MBAMERH

(a)

fie s AL

ACER AR R AL AL B P L B
(B R aELe) - i 2 B
Ay AR R ZAE o AE MG RBLUE AL P
A E RS -
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35. BRI LW (A)
(continued)
(a) As lessor (continued) (a) fEZsBALA (5
At 31 March 2010, the Group had total future RoF-FEZA=Z1—H » REER
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable PRSI B A0 R B I B 2 H AR B
operating leases with its tenants falling due as BARFRE M BT -
follows:
Group
A AR M
2010 2009
TR R ZRFILE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x F#x
Within one year —4EN 15,698 14,363
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 28 Z“EH HE (BFHRME) 10,131 21,322
25,829 35,685
(b) As lessee (b) FEZsRMA
The Group leases certain of its office properties A 5 P AR 0 50 L R AR AL T I
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for EY ¥ - MBEWENEEZMEH T
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one —ERE=A

to three years.

At 31 March 2010, the Group had total future RoF-RE=ZHA=1—H » REER

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable WA EME AR Z HRER
operating leases falling due as follows: BARF B M AW T -
Group
A 4R 1

2010 2009

SRR ZREFIE

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T#x F#or

Within one year —4EN 3,714 2,094

In the second to fifth years, inclusive 5 ~ 258 FL4FE (B H R W) 2,056 1,661

5,770 3,755
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EAR W
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B b SC B 35 (b) w1 58 88 A & ARG A
in note 35(b) above, the Group had the following capital A AR > AL AE DL ARG ¢

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

Group
AL M
2010 2009
R R ZEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T
Expenditure for development or MU THECELN
redevelopment projects, H oK B 4 = 3% R sk
contracted, but not provided for, HHEBEHZHEY :
in respect of:
Hotel under construction AE g il s 2,088 -
Properties held for development FHAEERZY¥ - 4,736
Investment properties Eia-g/ES 6,187 3,874
Properties under development BRP Yk - 360
8,275 8,970
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to those transactions and balances

37. BT R 5
() BRI AS B 5 3 LA 3 03 o ik 2 3% S
55 B GERR AN » AR A Y AR AR JBE Py 3 B

disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the

Group had the following transactions with related HITEIT T IR S ¢
parties during the year:
Group
7 4
2010 2009
e S %3 ZERRLE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt T F# T
Reimbursement receivable from JRE WA £ T 3 ] 4 )
Leighton-Able Joint Venture, B U — IR
a jointly-controlled I i 2
entity of the Group (i) 8,568 -
Rental expense paid to Win Source IR SE R E AR AT
Investment Limited (TRHE]) Xz
(“Win Source”) M4 (ii) - 28
Management income A A 42 [ — 3k ) 2 )
received and receivable from EHRL . fpesp
Excel-China Harbour Joint v ¥ T I T
Venture, a jointly-controlled JE Wz A A
entity of the Group (iii) 3,295 3,030
Sale of a motor vehicle to Winflower &K E T gt
Investment Limited BEARAF
(“Winflower”) ([ese ) (iv) - 300
Notes: WaE ¢

(1)

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

These charges were related to the reimbursement of costs
incurred by the Group for the benefit of Leighton-Able Joint
Venture in tendering of a construction project.

Mr. Ngai, the chairman of the board of directors of the
Company and a controlling shareholder of the Company,
is also a director of Win Source. The rental expense was
determined at a rate mutually agreed between the Group and
Win Source by reference to the prevailing market rate.

The management income is determined with reference to the
costs incurred.

Mr. Ngai is also a director of Winflower. The price of the
motor vehicle mutually agreed between the Group and
Winflower with reference to the prevailing market price.

(i)

(it)

(iii)

(iv)
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BT 5 ()

146

(continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) AR EZAAAA B AR
Group
Group
AL M
2010 2009
ZE R —EFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T
Short term employee benefits 5 108 B R A 19,660 27,380
Post-employment benefits e Mok 12 1 A 166 214
Equity-settled share option expense VL BE £ 45 530 Js B A ) S - 1,998
Total compensation paid to key INTFREEHEANR
management personnel ) 48 4 1 19,826 29,592

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include
borrowings, accounts and other receivables, accounts
and other payables, bank balances and deposits and
derivative financial instruments. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to the
financial statements.

As at 31 March 2010, the aggregate carrying amounts
of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets
categorised as loans and receivables amounted to
approximately HK$525,555,000 (2009: HK$452,829,000)
and HK$493,000 (2009: HK$426,000), respectively.

As at 31 March 2010, the aggregate carrying amounts
of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities
categorised as financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost amounted to approximately HK$888,753,000 (2009:
HK$832,859,000) and HK$208,000 (2009: HK$210,000),

respectively.

A B B O — 2B R > R S
A M ES

38. W . Bg 4% I H B R R

AC SR M A A i TR B A A - REWOR K
B At 8 WOk I ~ M A R Ak % L b M A K
JH -~ SRATAEBR AR 0 A RAT AR T A o
A B % B TR R > TR B RN A%
A B W P9 o

MR —BEZH=+—H > REBE AL
) 43 HE T B K 5 M WAk T I 4 R 4
B L A 45525,555,0008 0 (ZEFE N
4F : 452,829,000 JC) K 493,0009 76 (=&
FIAE 426,000 78) o

MR —BEZH=Z+—H > REE AL
A 43 S s TR RS FT A 04 4 b £ A 1 4
£ W 1 4 B A k43 Bl 44 44 888,753,000 T
(ZFEZ LA ¢ 832,859,000% J5) 208,000
Wt (ZFFILLE £ 210,00070) ©
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. WA B 45 B H B R R (7))

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The Group’s ordinary activities expose it to various
financial risks, including interest rate risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. Whilst the Group uses interest rate
swaps to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations of interest
rates, it does not use derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes. The risks associated with financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are described below. The management monitors
closely the Group’s exposures to financial risks to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank

borrowings with floating interest rate.

At 31 March 2010, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 25 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately HK$1,204,000, arising as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on the Group’s floating-
rate borrowings. At 31 March 2009, this would result
in an increase/decrease in the Group’s loss after tax
and decrease/increase retained profits by approximately
HK$1,217,000. There would be no impact on other

components of the Group’s equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period. For the purposes of
the analysis, it is assumed that the amount of variable-
rate borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding throughout the whole year. The
25 basis point increase or decrease represents management
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the reporting date of next

financial year. The analysis was performed on the same

basis for the year ended 31 March 2009.

A 45 [ 1 2 3% B 0 1 7 i B 2 R T
B o A3 A 3 B~ AR R B M 9 58 e R
Bt o A [ A0 PR ) Rt 1 5 A6 0 Dk L 2
RS ) R N SE i i O R o
i T ELAE S T 38 o A I <l T L B DA
T G Ao AR % 55 L Bt P RSRE o AR TR SO AL
L e B % A A8 1 O T S o A B L
Ve A% 908 IRF S A7 250 Hb 1R U B 57 o

RSN
75 1 i TG A R i 5 ) 3 A o)y e L i 2
A7 T A 45 1] A A 3 Bl ) % BRAT i R o

PR BEZA =4 —H o M AR
Wi 2SR L s B A S I AR R
g > JI) p R A A5 T ¥ 58 R R A R R R B 52
Bam WA s A 5 I R AR ik R % R B i
R, B #11,204,00085C « R FFI
EZHE+—H o B AR M R
HHE WA Bk B W A €A B £
1,217,0009 70 o AR 5 8] 4 i 10 At 4H B 55 23
325|505 o

bt g R 4 A 7 B A R A ) i e
KRB o BT AT - BB B IR W R
R38R 190 7 B ) 3 Ak 4 A 2 4 T 0 e R AR
AR o UL 58 HE B 2 B RE BA RN EET
— A B A B R H 2 39T ) P9 G B T i
BB c MEZFFIE=ZA=Z+—H
Ak 4R B2 5 DLAH (] 56 e 47 43 A -



‘ VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

B OB kK A B A #

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 5 Tk 3 B ke
31 March 2010 ZF—FF=H=1+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. WA B b 45 B H B R R (7))

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
bank balances and time deposits, accounts and other
receivables. The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure
at 31 March 2010 in the event of other parties failing
to perform their obligations is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

As the Group places deposits and enters into derivative
contracts only with banks with high credit ratings, the
credit risk in this regard is low.

Management monitors the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an on-going basis.
The Group’s receivables from contract work represent
interim payments or retentions certified by the customers
under terms as stipulated in the contracts and the Group
does not hold any collateral over these receivables. As the
Group’s customers in respect of contract work primarily
consist of government departments and developers or
owners with strong financial backgrounds, management
considers that the risk of irrecoverable receivables from
contract work is not significant. In respect of rentals
receivable, to limit the credit risk exposure, deposits are
required of each tenant upon inception of the leases and
monthly rentals are received in advance. Payments from
each tenant are monitored and collectibility is reviewed

closely.

At 31 March 2010, the Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 29% (2009: 23%) and 62% (2009:
77%) of the total accounts receivable were due from
the Group’s largest external customer and the Group’s
five largest external customers, respectively, within the

contract works segment.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. I . g 4% PR H B R R ()

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 24 and 25, respectively,
to the financial statements.

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in short and
long terms. In addition, banking facilities have been put

in place for contingency purposes.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date that the Group could be required to

repay:
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

38. Sk 5 bl b 4% B H B B R ()

Liquidity risk (continued) ) B A BB (A
Group
A 4R 1
Within 1 Between Between
year or on 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over
demand years years 5 years Total
ER
HALER 1524 2E54 SR BHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#7r T# T#r T#r
At 31 March 2010 REF-FEZH=4—H
Interest-bearing bank loans & B #UT 8 3% 184,436 39,047 115,984 278,017 617,484
Accounts payable JRE A5} M 7% 301,270 - - - 301,270
Other payables (note 28) o ft A 3% (W AE28) 10,606 - - - 10,606
496,312 39,047 115,984 278,017 929,360
At 31 March 2009 RERBREZAZ+—H
Interest-bearing bank loans F BT R 206,822 32,763 97,202 322,027 658,814
Accounts payable JEE £ MR 3k 238,486 - - - 238,486
Other payables (note 28) At A 3 (W AE28) 11,223 - - - 11,223
456,531 32,763 97,202 322,027 908,523

In addition, as disclosed in note 34, at the reporting date,
the Group has given financial guarantees to banks in
respect of performance bonds issued in favour of contract
customers on behalf of certain subsidiaries of the Group
to the extent of HK$24,525,000 (2009: HK$19,325,000).
In the event of the failure of those subsidiaries to fulfill
their obligations under the relevant contracts, the Group
may be required to pay up to the guaranteed amounts
to the banks upon demand. Management considers it is
not probable that there would be any claim requiring the
Group to pay under these financial guarantees for the

performance bonds.

BEAh > S B RE34 P e R o R H s AR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. W 5 WAl B 4% B H B R BOR ()
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) ) B A BB (A
Company
AR
Within 1 Between Between
year or on 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over
demand years years 5 years Total
1Rl

R B R 1524 2E 54 541 M
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

T# T T T T#

At 31 March 2010 BREF-FEZH=4—H

Other payables (note 28) Bl A K (M 7E28) 208 - - - 208
At 31 March 2009 REZFFAE=ZA=Z+—H

Other payables (note 28) oAt WE £ 3% (K 2E28) 210 - - - 210
In addition, as disclosed in note 34, the Company has BEAN > Bl B RE34 P R - A R BEAS A ]
given financial guarantees to banks in respect of banking i JEES 22 ) R =2 SRAT AR B A 1 SRAT A Hh B
facilities granted to subsidiaries of the Company, of B REIREHY . ARMBARCEN
which HK$601,402,000 (2009: HK$626,576,000) was o Z $R17 45 B #601,402,0008 8 (ZFF
utilised at the reporting date. In the event of the failure JUAE £ 626,576,000% 70) © i %5 3% 5 M & 2
of those subsidiaries to fulfill their obligations under these A A BB AT AR 5 A B SRAT A5 R B AT -
banking facilities, the Company may be required to pay AR ] R G 28 M R 1 SR AT AT AR R Y
up to the guaranteed amounts to the banks upon demand. B HHER A » AKRWTREA LM R
Management considers it is not probable that there would SRA 2 ) AR B b B s 0 R S A RO o

be any claim requiring the Company to pay under these
financial guarantees.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management policy is to ensure that the Company will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a periodical basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital and will balance the
Company’s overall capital structure through new share

issues as well as raising new debts or repayment of existing

debts.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio
derived from the consolidated statement of financial
position. The following table analyses the Group’s capital
structure as at 31 March 2010:

38. Sk 5 bl b 4% B H B B R ()

HaHa

AAF G BRI EEAR » RUER
A T BB A 2 2 TR MR e P A o AR
A2 T REFR A » (5] IR Al A 94 i S [
# o

A2 T WY S AR AR o AR W
58 DL 4 PR A B A5 SO 4 R ) e B A
Hy Fohg it i —E Ay o XN B AT R4y DA
BEALAME

S T AL B 2k B A £ B IR D AR M R R
TR RREEE S - TRAAREER
FREZA=Z+— HIE AR Z 34T

2010 2009
e S i ZERFENG
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#C T

Total interest-bearing bank loans B RAT B R 576,877 583,150
Less: Pledged bank balance W CHRIT ERAT A B - (1,043)

Pledged time deposits CLHR T 2 A7 K (1,075) (4,469)

Cash and cash equivalents BeRB&%HEY (209,022) (206,591)
Net borrowings TG K 366,780 371,047
Total equity HHBE 25 610,264 418,065
Net gearing ratio AR AR b & 60% 89%

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 39. M @M E 2

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2010.

AMBEHRECR F-FEANAZTNAK
FH 2 25 41t ol I 452 A
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